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City of Columbia, South Carolina



CITY OF COLUMBIA
SOUTH CAROLINA

December 8, 2008

Honorable Robert D. Coble, Mayor
Members of City Council
City of Columbia, South Carolina

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is presented herein
with the senior leadership team’s admiration and sincere thankfulness to the City Council for their energy,
vision, devotion to public service and collective statesmanship. This report confirms the implementation
of council’s emphasis and favor of conservative fiscal practices and affirms the City of Columbia as one
of South Carolina’s financially well-managed cities.

The organization, form, and content of this report, and the accompanying financial statements and
statistical tables, were formulated according to the principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board and the Government Finance Officers Association. The City of Columbia’s financial
statements have been audited by WebsterRodgers, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
WebsterRogers, LLP concluded, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion
that the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2007, are fairly presented in conformity
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report. Accuracy of the presented data and the completeness
and fairness of this publication rests with the City, and its management willingly assumes full
responsibility for the same. We believe that the report includes all disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain a thorough understanding of the City’s financial affairs.

PRESENTATION

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and
Statistical. The Introductory Section, which is unaudited, includes this Letter of Transmittal; a list of the
City of Columbia’s elected officials and organizational charts of City staff and the Accounting Division.
The Financial Section includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Government-wide
Financial Statements, Fund Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements, combining
schedules as well as the independent auditor's report on these financial statements and schedules. The
Statistical Section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Columbia’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.



REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds and account groups of the Primary
Government (i.e., the City of Columbia as legally defined), as well as its Component Units. The
Component Units of the City of Columbia are legally separate entities for which the Primary Government
is financially accountable. The government provides a full range of services including police and fire
protection, certain judicial services, community development and promotion, water and sewer services,
solid waste services, construction and maintenance of streets and infrastructure, recreational activities and
cultural events.

Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Primary Government and to differentiate
their financial position and results of operations.

The City and its Organization

The City of Columbia is the largest city and the capital of South Carolina. The City remains steadfastly
committed to enhancing the quality of life for each resident of| and visitor to the greater Metro-Columbia
area. Being cast in the pivotal lead ambassador role of South Carolina is not foreign to the City and itis a
duty and responsibility that leadership gladly accepts as we serve as the cultural, educational, health-care,
and commercial center of the state. Columbia, located in the geographic center of South Carolina, and is
accommodated by three interstate highways, which enviably positions the City as a comfortable drive to
most other southeastern metropolitan areas. There are 135.13 square miles of land within the corporate
boundaries of the City. The City's estimated population is 119,961 with 716,030 in the metro area.

The City of Columbia operates under a Council — Manager form of government. Policy making and
legislative authority is vested with the seven member City Council, including an elected Mayor, they also
oversee the City Manager who is the Chief Executive Officer of the City and manages the day-to-day
operations including budgeting and finances.

Economic Conditions and Outlook

The Greater Columbia Area has a world class business-friendly operating environment, a well-trained
labor force, an excellent transportation network and support infrastructure that is conducive to business
growth and development. This results in steady growth for the Columbia economy. A balanced
economic base, including federal, state and local governments, plus a large medical community provides
a stable source of jobs for the growing workforce. The number of jobs in the region increased from
273,458 t0 290,023. This economic balance does not happen by chance; the City has a strong economic
development team of professionals that has embarked on an enterprising modernization strategy to ensure
a favorable economic future by diversification.

Fort Jackson, one of the country’s largest military training facilities, is also located in Columbia. Annual
expenditures by Fort Jackson exceed $700 million, and over 100,000 family members visit the Midlands
area each year to attend basic training graduations activities. These visitors have a solid impact on the
local economy, supporting local hotels, restaurants and the retail shopping industry. Ft. Jackson’s new
$150 million infrastructure project is under way and is a significant benefit to the local economy.

Another City strategic business partner is the University of South Carolina. In connection with the City
of Columbia and Richland County, USC has recently launched a 56-acre research facilty named the
Innovista Campus. The research to be conducted at the Innovista Campus will concentrate on
nanotechnology, hydrogen fuel cell research, bio-medical and environmental sciences. The economic
impact of all this new construction, creation of new companies and new jobs is being felt currently and
will positively impact the local and state business climate, adding another element of diversity to our
economy far into the future,



The renaissance of Columbia’s City Center continues; the Meridian Tower office building and
headquarters of First Citizens Bank & Trust Company are complete. The CanalSide project,
redevelopment of the S.C. Mental Health property, North Columbia projects and The Congaree Vista
District (Vista) continues to be a major economic force in Columbia’s City Center.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

As the City’s Master Plan is implemented, the strengths and opportunities available to support the
continued growth of Columbia become more apparent. The Master Plan sets forth a list of development
opportunities, principles and strategies to guide public and private investment in the future, and focus on
creating a vibrant urban core with a mixture of residential, retail and office space along with cultural and
entertainment opportunities.

The Three Rivers Greenway is providing river access to the public while preserving the natural beauty
and protecting the rivers as an asset for the local communities. The CanalSide Esplanade and Canalfront
project provides prima facie evidence of the City’s commitment to responsible riverfront development.

As previously reported, the City of Columbia is ready to embark on a variety of multi-year infrastructure
projects. The projects will allow cabling for underground utilities, replacing or moving old water, sewer
and storm drain utilities, redesigning streets, and updating gateways into the city. Streetscape
improvement projects including new sidewalks, period street lighting, and major landscaping can be seen
up and down the City’s streets.

The development of the Convention Center is very exciting and continues on schedule as the Convention
Center Hotel opened in 2007.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES
Internal Controls

Internal controls are procedures that are designed to protect assets from loss, theft or misuse; to check the
accuracy and reliability of accounting data; to promote operational efficiency; and to encourage
compliance with managerial policies. The management of the City is responsible for establishing a system
of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurances these objectives are met.

Cash management practices

The $183 million investment portfolio is split between four asset managers. All investments are in
compliance with State laws and Federal arbitrage rules.

Budgetary control

The City maintains budgetary controls, which are designed to ensure compliance with legal provisions of
the annual budget adopted by Council. It is the City’s objective to conduct an open budget process
providing for input from department administrators, top management, elected officials and the public as
the City’s programs and services are determined for the next year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated staff of the entire
Accounting Division of the finance Department. We would also like to express our appreciation to all
members of other departments who contributed to its preparation and dedicated considerable resources to
ensure our successful completion of this report,



Special thanks is given to the team of accountants working with us through the Municipal Association of
South Carolina on this project. We are grateful for their dedication, expertise and many hours of
preparation of this report.

In closing, we are thankful for the leadership and support of Columbia City Council in the work that they
do for the Citizens and Customers of the City of Columbia.

Respectfully submitted,
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Charles P. Austm Sr / Mehsa Caughma
City Manager Interim F 1nano§{121rector
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Robert D. Coble, Mayor
and Members of City Council
Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the City of Columbia (the
City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to in paragraph one
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Columbia as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 8, 2008, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our audit.

PO Box 6289 (29502)

1411 Second Loop Road (29505)
Florence, South Carolina
843-665-5900, Fax 843-678-9523
www,websterrogers.com



The management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information,
listed in the accompanying table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but are required supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual fund statements and schedules, and supplementary information
to the financial statements, and the statistical section, as listed in the accompanying table
of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and
schedules, and supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. " The
introductory section and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures appiied in the audit of tic Lasic fuaucial staicicuis aud, avouidiugly, Wo
express no opinion on them.

(Lért /<Zz S

Columbia, South Carolina
December 8, 2008



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

The following summary and overview is presented by the financial management team of the City of Columbia
(“City") in an effort to provide a brief, easy to read, yet concise financial analysis of what the many pages of
schedules, comparisons, statements and notes of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report represents and
supports. We have found that many interested readers, those that may not be particularly well versed in the
accounting discipline, prefer to be informed via the narrative format, thus this is “our work” to satisfy that need.
Please be encouraged to consider the information presented here as well as that found in the letter of
transmittal which starts on page 1 of this report.

The discussion and analysis is organized to increase the amount of information and detail as the reader
continues through the pages of this document. The following are the “top four” financially significant facts, if
you should read nothing further, these highlights are important for you to know and find confidence in the fact
that your elected officials and appointed professionals are maintaining the City's long history of financial
stewardship, integrity and strength.

Financial Highlights

s The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $725.7
million (net assets), including $612.2 million invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

¢ The government's total net assets increased by $27.4 million when compared to the restated net
assets on June 30, 2006.

e The Local Option Sales Tax was implemented in the prior year. This alternative funding method
provided $15 million in revenue during the year ended June 30, 2007 as an “offset” to property taxes.

¢ The Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation Fund was established and accounts for certain
obligations related to the City's partnership with University of South Carolina (the University) to build
two parking garages. These garages are part of the University's new research campus, Innovista.

The financial data of the annual report is organized much like this discussion, in that it too provides
consolidated information and aggregate reporting in the first few pages and then increases the amount of
detail as the reader progresses through the report, and concludes by providing very detailed explanations to
the “how and why" of certain presented financial data in the notes to the financial statement section. The
reader will need to understand the concept of funds being established on the basis of legal requirement,
source of revenue or service provided. You will come to know that the City of Columbia has three types of
funds: Government, Proprietary, and Fiduciary.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide (consolidating all the
activities of the City), 2) fund (taking each activity of the City and placing its financial reporting into a
designated fund), and 3) notes to the financial statements. The City of Columbia employs the government-
wide financial statements to distinguish functions of the City’'s operations that are principally supported by
taxes and government related revenues, which are governmental activities, and from the functions of the
City's operations that are supported primarily by fees and charges for service rendered, which are business-
type activities. The following are examples of each:

Governmental Activities — police and fire department, public works, and parks & recreation
Business-type Activities — water and sewer facilities, parking facilities, and storm water facilities

10



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. In the
private-sector the statement that presents all that the business owns (Assets) and the claims against those
Assets by others (Liabilities) and the resulting Net Assets of the company (Assets minus Liabilities) is called
the Balance Sheet. The government-wide balance sheet is titled “The Statement of Net Assets” and it
provides the same information. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of the financial well being of the City.

The consolidated net assets schedule below displays the net assets for both the governmental activities and
business-type activities. The complete Government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page
20 of this report.

Our discussion will first focus on the governmental activities followed by a review of the business-type
activities. This schedule and the changes in net assets schedule will be our reference for these discussions.

City of Columbia
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2007 and 2006

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 * 2007 2006 % 2007 2006 ©

Assets

Current and other assets $ 124488493 § 114,139,007 $ 193,825616 $ 214,000,886 $ 318,314,109 $ 328,139,993

Capiiai asssis 227,555,540 233,105,025 554,005,502 521,855,553 702,057,505 72,070,275
Total assets 351,857,106 324,247,335 748,514,568 735,970,932 1,100,371,674 1,060,218,267
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities 96,570,597 97,243,381 190,161,767 211,866,932 286,732,364 309,110,313

Current liabilities 59,005,491 29,848,817 28,921,115 19,952,096 87,926,606 49,800,913
Total liabilities 155,576,088 127,092,198 219,082,882 231,819,028 374,658,970 358,911,228
Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 170,666,468 118,540,682 441,526,920 408,139,448 612,193,388 526,680,130

Restricted 7,270 6,982 0 0 7,270 6,982

Unrestricted 25,607,280 75,615,451 87,904,766 95,972,456 113,512,046 171,587,907
Total net assets $ 196,281,018 $ 194,163,115 $ 529,431,686 § 504,111,904 $ 725,712,704  § 698,275,019

* The 2006 numbers have been restated due to the City performing a physical inventory of its capital assets
during the year ended June 30, 2007, and writing off certain amounts that were recorded as due from Federal
government at June 30, 2006, that were not actually receivable by the City. See footnote IV.

We are now introducing another consolidated schedule which will assist in our discussion of the assets of the
City.

The statement of changes (activities) presents information showing how the government's net assets changed

during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

11



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

Revenues

Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants &
contributions
Capital grants &
Contributions
General revenues
Property taxes
Other taxes
Unrestricted
investment income
Gain (loss) on
disposal

Total revenues

Expenses
General
government
Judicial
Finance department
Community
development
Public safety
Parks & recreation
Public services
General services
Community
promotion
interest on bonds

Non departmental
Water/sewer
facilities
Hydro electric plant
Storm water
operating
Parking facilities
Transportation
operations
Redevelopment
programs
Total expenses

Increase {decrease)
in net assets before
transfers
Transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets 7/1/06
Blending of Public
Facilities Corp. into
governmental funds
Net assets 7/1/06 as
restated

Net assets 6/30/07

* The 2006 numbers have been restated due to the City performing a physical inventory of its capital assets during the year ended June

$

City of Columbia
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

007 2006 * 2007 2006 * 2007 2006 *
56,583,922 $ 51,943,738 $ 109,493,479 $ 103,272,992 $ 166,077,401  § 155,216,730
30,413,604 30,208,260 - - 30,413,604 30,208,260
8,291,673 2,165,766 12,161,089 13,738,679 20,452,762 15,904,445
32,028,856 27,134,829 - - 32,028,856 27,134,829
18,431,536 17,464,895 - - 18,431,536 17,464,895
4,670,483 2,478,194 6,715,293 5,536,084 11,385,776 8,014,278
(7,426,558) (2,950,480) (116,006) (4,562,096) (7,542,564) (7,512,576)
142,993,515 128,445,202 128,253,855 117,985,659 271,247,370 246,430,861
35,358,581 29,380,319 - - 35,358,581 29,380,319
2,167,922 2,044,037 - - 2,167,922 2,044,037
1,982,964 1,360,869 - - 1,982,964 1,360,869
3,904,174 3,396,497 - - 3,904,174 3,396,487
50,306,708 43,322,024 - - 50,306,708 43,322,024
11,053,830 7,853,425 - - 11,053,830 7,853,425
24,014,241 21,165,433 - - 24,014,241 21,165,433
3,382,092 5,791,988 - - 3,382,092 5,791,988
9,926,673 7,946,764 - - 9,926,673 7,946,764
4,081,910 2,275,464 - - 4,081,910 2,275,464
3,433,419 2,003,830 - - 3,433,41% 2,093,830
- - 83,849,936 80,189,801 83,849,936 80,189,801
- - 1,020,132 1,010,483 1,020,132 1,010,483
- - 3,382,264 1,683,476 3,382,264 1,683,476
- - 5,139,583 6,149,446 5,139,583 6,149,446
- - 30,320 31,363 30,320 31,383
- - 774,935 901,209 774,935 901,209
149,612,513 126,630,650 94,197,170 89,965,778 243,809,683 216,596,428
(6,618,998) 1,814,552 34,056,685 28,019,881 27,437,687 29,834,433
8,736,903 5,832,436 (8,736,903) (5,832,436) - -
2,117,905 7,646,988 25,319,782 22,187,445 27,437,687 29,834,433
194,163,113 182,607,120 504,111,904 481,924,459 698,275,017 664,531,579
- 3,809,007 - - - 3,909,007
194,163,113 186,516,127 504,111,904 481,924 459 698,275,017 668,440,586
196,281,018 $ 194,163,115 3 529,431,686 $ 504,111,904 $ 725,712,704  $ 698,275,019

30, 2007, and writing off certain amounts that were recorded as due from Federal government at June 30, 20086, that were not actually

receivable by the City. See footnote IV.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

In comparison to the restated net assets, the City’'s net assets increased $2.1 million in governmental activities
and increased $25.3 million in Business-type activities during the current fiscal year. The following tables and
graphs provide information regarding the government's change in net assets for the year ending June 30,
2007.

Our discussion and analysis will include a discussion of the governmental activities, and the business-type
activities review will follow. The tables below will calculate the changes to the net assets, first in aggregate
and then by detailed sources and uses of how the changes were affected.

City of Columbia
Net Change in Assets-Governmental Activities
{in thousands)

Net Assets June 30, 2007 $ 196,281
Less: Net Assets June 30, 20086, as restated 194,163
Change in Assets $ 2,118

The next schedule will present the actual source of the revenues and use of the expenditures that were made
over ine year inal resuiied in iiis cliange.

City of Columbia
Changes in Net Assets-Governmental Activities
{(in thousands)

Net
Revenues Expenses Change

Program Revenues $95,289

General Revenues 55,131

Other Revenues/Transfers 1,310

General Government $35,358

Judicial 2,168

Finance 1,983
Community Development 3,904

Public Safety 50,307

Parks and Recreation 11,054

Public Services 24,014

General Services 3,382
Community Promotions 9,927

Interest on Bonds 4,082
Other/Transfers 3,433

Net Revenues $151,730

Less: Expenses $149,612

Total Net Change in Assets $ 2,118

Our discussion will continue as we look more closely at the revenues and expenses. From the above schedule
the reader can see where the revenues were generated and which department was charged for the expenses.
Our next table will show the classification of both the revenues and expenses.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities
(in thousands)

Charges for services $ 55,844
Operating and capital grants and contributions 39,446
General property taxes 32,029
Other taxes 18,431
Unrestricted investment income 4,670
Other/Transfer 1.310
Total $ 151.730

We will now look at the “use” side of the changes in the net assets; the schedule below will show the expense
classification. Most readers will find this table of interest as it will show the “mix” of expenses required to
generate the changes we have been considering.

Expenses by Use - Governmental Activities
(in thousands)
Personnel services $ 75,329
Supplies 7,357
Other services and charges 46,552
Capital outlay 20,374
Total $ 149612 |

Expenses by Use - Governmental Activities

\ Personnel
services
| . 50.10%

Other services__ (_

and charges \ T

31.45%

Supplies
4.89%

Our review will now move to the business-type activities, in much the same manner as we explored the
governmental activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

City of Columbia
Net Change in Assets-Business-type Activites
(in thousands)

Net Assets June 30, 2007 $ 529,432
Less: Restated Net Assets June 30, 2006 504,112
Change in Assets $ 25320

The next schedule will present the actual source of the revenues and use of the expenditures that were made
over the year that resulted in this change.

City of Columbia
Changes in Net Assets-Business-type Activities
(in thousands)

Net
Revenues Expenses Change

Charge for Services $109,494

Developer Contributions 12,161

Investment Income 6,715

Water & Sewer $83,850
Hydro-Electric Plant 1,020

Storm Water 3,382

Parking Facilities 5,140
Transportation 30
Redevelopment 775
Other/Transfers 8,853

Net Revenues $128,370

Less: Expenses $103,050

Total Net Change in Assets $25,320

The table and graph below will present the same information in a different format as well as from a different
perspective, much as we did in the review of the governmental activities portion of our discussion.

Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

(in thousands)

Charges for services $ 109,494
Investment earnings 6,715
Developer Contribution 12,161
Total $ 128,370
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities

Developer
Contribution
9.47%
Investment
earnings
5.23%

Charges for
services
85.30%

The previously displayed information shows that operating revenues are considerable and that the Water and
Sewer department are the main contributors of total revenue for charges for services.

As we did in the governmental activities review, an analysis of the expenses will follow:

Expenses by Use - Business-type Activities
(in thousands)

Personnel services $ 26,244
Supplies 8,650
Other services and charges 59,303
Total $ 94,197

Expenses by Use - Business-type Activities

Personnel
services
27.86%

v

Other T
services and {
charges _\\""—N__q
62.96%

Supplies
3.18%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)
Original Compared to Final Budget

The Fire Department reflects a decrease in original to final budget for a transfer of $1,457,705 to fund the
purchase of fire equipment. This fransfer also accounts for most of the variance in the Original Budget to the
Final Budget for Operating Transfers Out. Parks and Recreation's original budget reflects $358,000 in
allocations to various agencies that receive funding through the City's Community Promotion grants. During
the year, these funds were transferred to the Community Promotion line item which is reflected in the Final
Budget. Finally, the Non-Departmental Final Budget reflects $344,602 that was carried over from the previous
year as funding for various projects of the City Manager's office.

Current Conditions That Are Expected to Have a Significant Effect on the City’s Financial Position

Rising health care cost and the issuance of GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) Statement 45
will result in the City making changes to health care benefits for employees and retiree benefits in order to
adequately fund its health care program and reduce the amount of the liability required for reporting GASB
45. Adding to the costs associated with risk management is rising workers compensation claims which is also
impacted by the rising cost of health care.

While the City's primary revenue sources are not as sensitive to changes in the economy, the cost to operate
is impacted by the rising cost of goods and services such as gasoline, electricity, and construction materials.
Special revenue sources such as hospitality tax and accommodations tax remain stable due to the growth in
entertainment and tourism sectors of the area, and the opening of the Central Midlands Convention Center;
however the impacts of any downturn in the economy are reflected in these collections.

The most significant impact on the City's primary source of general fund revenue is property tax reform passed
by the South Carolina Legislation caps millage increases to CPi and population growth. These caps will have
a major impact on the City's ability to adjust property taxes accordingly to fund the services provided to
citizens.

We have concluded our discussion of the government-wide statements but as noted earlier in this analysis, the
City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The
following paragraphs provide a discussion of these funds.

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available to address interruption in cash flow due to timing of cash receipts (most
of the taxes are collected in the middie of the fiscal year) or contribute to the next fiscal years revenue
requirement.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds report a combined decrease in fund
halance of $55 thousand in comparison with the prior vear. A portion of the total fund balance amount of $70.2
million constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for allocation at the government's discretion.
However, a significant part of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available because it has
already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period.

The general fund is the main operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, a favorable
unreserved fund balance existed, which is a measure of the general fund’s liquidity. This represents an
increase of $529 thousand during the current fiscal year. At the close of the same year the fund balance of the
non-major special revenue funds decreased by $2.85 million, indicating that the funds are being used for their
designated and special purposes. Also of note is the non-major Capital project fund that decreased by $1.67
million, which is evidence that the City’s construction projects are properly funded.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds are established and utilized to report the business functions of the City.
The City of Columbia has two types of proprietary funds, enterprise and internal service. Enterprise funds are
used to account for our departments that “sell” goods and services outside the government, such as our Water
& Sewer Facilities.

Internal service funds account for our departments which “sell” goods and services only to departments and
components of the City’s government, such as our Fleet Management department.

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the Government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

The City’s Water & Sewer Facilities is the largest of the enterprise funds with total assets of more than $605
million and operating revenues of $98.3 million. Both of these measures are increases over last year and
reflect well upon the long-term management practices of the department.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2007 amounts to $782 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and
infrastructure. To fairly report an estimated current value, much like a business entity would, the City employs
a depreciation allocation method, which reduces the cost reported as the asset ages or decreases in value
due to usage, obsolescence, or amortization.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included:

e Improvements to the water treatment plants were included in “construction in progress”.

¢ $38.5 million of improvements to the water and sewer projects were completed and added to capital
assets.

e Additional capital was contributed to the capital assets fund during this fiscal year

e Major streetscaping projects were undertaken

¢ In establishing the Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation Fund, the City partnered with the University
of South Carolina (the University) to build two parking garages. These garages are part of the
University’s new research campus, innovista.

City’s Capital Assets (net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2007 2006 * 2007 2006 * 2007 2006 *
Land $ 37,600,886 % 37,601,000 $ 21433336 § 21,433,000 $ 59,034,222 § 59,034,000
Construction
work-in-
progress 40,677,634 14,019,000 63,095,215 64,136,000 103,772,849 78,155,000
Infrastructure 8,433,965 7,091,356 0 0 8,433,965 7,091,356
Buildings 127,774,987 138,150,872 456,619,087 421,262,946 584,394,074 559,413,918
Machinery and
Equipment 12,881,142 13,246,000 13,541,314 15,138,000 26,422,456 28,384,000
Total 3 227,368,614 $ 210,108,328 $ 554,688,952 § 521,969,946 $ 782,057,566 $ 732,078,274

* The 2006 numbers have been restated due to the City performing a physical inventory of its capital assets
during the year ended June 30, 2007. See footnote IV.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note lll. G. on pages 50 and 51 of this
report.

The schedule above displays the tremendous importance of assets to the efficient operations of the City.
Paying for the investment in assets is not a one year transaction but rather a long-term commitment by the
City and those obligations warrant discussion as well.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)
City’s Outstanding Debt - General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

The City's total long-term (more than one year) debt increased by $3.5 million during the current fiscal year.
This increase in debt is attributed mostly to the 2007 Parking Facilities Corporation Bonds ($13 M) offset by
principal payments made.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $313.8 million. Of this amount, $17.4
million comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government and $10.2 million tax increment
debt for which the City is liable for the full amount of the debt but the debt service is paid through incremental
tax revenues from property owners located in specific areas.

The remainder of the City's debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue
bonds), such as those issued by the Water & Sewer Facilities or the Parking Facilities, and other items such
as compensated absences and capital leases.

The City maintains an “AAA” rating from Standard & Poor's and an “Aaa” rating from Moody's for general
obligation debt. The revenue bonds of the City have been rated “AA” Standard & Poor's and a “Aa2” by
Moody's. :

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 8 percent of its
total assessed valuation without referendum; the City is below this limit.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note Iil. J. on pages 53-60 of this report.

Requests for Information

This portion of the financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's financial position.
The management team hopes this narrative has proved to be helpful in your understanding of the City's
finances. If you have questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or suggestions that
you feel will help improve this discussion paper please address same to City of Columbia, PO Box 147, 1136
Washington Street, Columbia, South Carolina, 29217.

Thank you for your interest in the City, in general, and its finances specifically.

Melisa A. Caughman
Interim Finance Director

19



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Property taxes
Federal government
State government
Accounts
Accrued interest
Notes, net of allowance
Deposits
inventory
Due from component units
Internal balances
Due from primary government
Prepaid expenses
Real estate held for resale

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets

Investments

Mortgage notes receivable, net

Notes receivable

Other Assets
Unamortized bond issue costs
Contracts receivable
Other

Capital assets not being depreciated:
L.and
Construction in progress

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation:

Buildings, improvements and utility plant
Office furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment

Other capital assets

Total noncurrent assets

Toftal assets

June 30, 2007

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 31,867,851 § 38,225,053 $ 70,092,904 $ 2,983,230

39,313,263 11,329,737 50,643,000 8,812,599

6,491,496 0 6,491,496 0

3,049,003 0 3,049,003 0

1,384,358 0 1,394,358 0

7,717,548 8,284,137 16,001,685 1,092,926

372,906 1,526,768 1,899,674 9,812

0 3,299,455 3,299,455 677,087

78,745 0 78,745 0

1,218,553 2,276,681 3,495,234 1,697

2,009 962,400 964,409 0

2,484,333 (2,484,333) 0 0

0 0 0 100,000

53,428 250,360 303,788 97,447

0 336,425 336,425 1,916,085

94,043,493 64,006,683 158,050,176 15,690,883

28,457,634 104,268,389 132,726,023 0

0 21,348,341 21,348,341 0

0 62,153 62,153 0

1,987,366 3,185,396 5,472,762 22,272

0 954,654 954,654 962,023

0 0 0 11,430

37,600,886 21,433,336 59,034,222 2,070,246

40,677,634 63,095,215 103,772,849 0

127,774,987 456,619,087 584,394,074 4,516,788

0 0 0 806,088

8,433,965 0 8,433,965 0

12,881,142 13,541,314 26,422,456 0

0 0 0 24,093

257,813,613 684,507,885 942,321,498 8,412,940

$ 351,857,106 § 748,514,568 $ 1,100,371,674 $ 24,103,823

(Continued)
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued liability for claims
Accrued interest
Retainage payable
Deferred revenue
Due to component unit
Due to primary government
Compensated absences
Current notes payable
Current contracts payable

Capital lease payable (due in one year)

Bonds and notes (due in one year)
Revenue bonds payable
Customer deposits

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent notes payable
Compensated absences
Capital lease payable
Bonds and notes (due after one year)
Contracts payable

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted
Nonexpendable
Expendable

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

CiTY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2007

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ 19,245,064 $ 7,981,705 $ 27,226,769 $ 683,467
2,249,061 477,424 2,726,485 1]
15,901,813 0 15,901,813 0
1,029,734 2,883,305 3,913,039 0
3,200,675 5,710,860 8,911,535 0
2,020,163 0 2,020,163 239,002
100,000 0 100,000 0
0 0 0 964,409
1,258,320 346,786 1,605,106 121,430
75,000 45,000 120,000 0
0 870,039 870,039 0
728,758 0 728,758 0
11,021,903 0 11,021,903 3,209,935
2,175,000 10,605,000 12,780,000 0
0 996 996 0
59,005,491 28,921,115 87,926,606 5,218,243
3,663,526 475,000 4,138,526 0
5,288,548 1,387,144 6,675,692 0
1,518,235 0 1,518,235 0
86,100,288 186,433,605 272,533,893 7,429,336
0 1,866,018 1,866,018 0
96,570,597 190,161,767 286,732,364 7,429,336
155,576,088 219,082,882 374,658,970 12,647,579
170,666,468 441,526,920 612,193,388 572,331
1,983 0 1,983 0
5,287 0 5,287 0
25,607,280 87,904,766 113,512,046 10,883,913
196,281,018 529,431,686 725,712,704 11,456,244
$ 351,857,106 $ 748,514,568 $ 1,100,371,674 $ 24,103,823

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Receivables
Property taxes

Federal government

State government

Accounts

Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from component units
Prepaid charges

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Retainage payable

Due to component unit

Deferred revenue

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances

Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved
Nonexpendable
Expendable

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2007

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management,

support services, and risk management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds

Certain other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are

deferred in the funds

Property taxes receivable, net of aliowance for doubtfui accounts of $660,516

Unamortized bond costs

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest
Accrued bonds and notes payable
Unamortized premium

Net assets of governmental activities

Columbia

Parking Other Total
County Facilities Governmental Governmental

General Services Corporation Funds Funds
$ 131,749 § 161,595 § 14,185,545 $ 14,673,260 $ 29,152,149
15,104,649 0 1] 38,191,926 53,296,575
957,929 '] 0 5,533,568 6,491,497
[ ] 0 3,049,003 3,049,003
933,001 0 1] 461,357 1,394,358
1,613,127 0 5,613,779 457,252 7,684,158
118,342 [ 0 118,132 237,474
9,976,216 0 /] 0 9,976,216
0 0 0 2,009 2,009
0 0 0 10,341 10,341
$ 28,836,012 § 161,595 $ 19,799,324 § 62,496,848 $ 111,293,780
$ 2,371,188 § 405,611 § 14,293,762 § 1,211,057 § 18,281,618
1,801,359 349,787 1] 39,430 2,190,576
0 0 721,449 2,479,226 3,200,675
100,000 0 0 0 100,000
838,366 0 0 1,371,202 2,209,568
0 0 0 15,172,538 15,172,538
5,110,813 755,398 15,015,211 20,273,453 41,154,975
2,037,950 445,261 0 17,527,588 20,010,799
0 o 0 1,883 1,983
0 0 0 5,287 5,287
21,687,149 0 0 0 21,687,149
0 (1,038,064) 0 13,618,962 12,579,898
0 g [ 4,885,298 4,885,298
0 0 4,784,113 6,184,277 10,968,390
23,725,099 {593,803} 4,784,113 42,223,395 70,138,804

$ 28,836,012 § 161,585 § 19,799,324 § 62,496,848

9,456,142
227,368,613
189,405
1,987,366
(6,546,868)
(1,029,734)
(102,442,104}

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

General property taxes
License and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Federal government
State government
County government
Promations
Confiscated funds
Interest

Other revenues

Cost recovery fees

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Judicial
Finance department
Planning and development
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Public services
General services
Community promotion
Non departmental
Other Charges
Debt service
Principal retirement/ payment on bonds
Interest on bonds
Fiscal agent charges
Capital outlay
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

{under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers (out)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from note payable issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

financing sources over (under) expenditures and

other financing uses

Beginning fund balance
Prior period adjustment
Beginning fund balance, as restated

Fund balance, end of year

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Columbia
Parking Other Total
County Facilities Governmental Governmental
General Services Corporation Funds Funds

$ 41,223,855 § 0$ 0 $ 5,460,858 § 46,884,713
31,162,106 0 0 0 31,162,106
9,879,961 0 0 0 9,879,961
6,859,711 1,553,016 0 0 8,412,727
786,187 0 0o 0 786,187

0 0 0 6,296,982 6,296,982

0 0 0 1,630,152 1,630,152

[ 12,354,649 5,613,779 9,578,271 27,546,699

0 0 0 188,563 188,563

0 0 1] 44,057 44,057

833,745 1] 417,201 2,261,184 3,512,130
557,992 [ 0 4,433,209 4,991,201
3,200,000 0 0 0 3,200,000
94,503,557 13,907,665 6,030,980 29,893,276 144,335,478
4,857,162 12,830,004 551,226 11,898,167 30,136,559
1,874,399 0 0 0 1,874,399
1,747,050 0 0 0 1,747,050
2,249,128 [4} 1] [ 2,249,128
42,204,031 1] 0 0 42,204,031
8,943,182 0 0 15,953 8,959,135
17,068,283 0 0 3,839,140 20,907,423
3,221,626 1] 0 0 3,221,626
542,106 [} 0 7,486,286 8,028,392
1,994,232 1] 0 0 1,994,232
0 0 1] 1,567,941 1,567,941

75,000 0 1] 7,484,169 7,559,169

0 0 [ 3,804,084 3,804,084

0 0 0 87,360 87,360

0 1,498,786 22,709,899 1,200,907 25,409,592
85,776,197 14,328,790 23,261,125 37,384,007 160,750,119
8,727,360 (421,125) (17,230,145) (7,490,731) (16,414,641)
6,744,189 46,870 0 16,461,068 23,252,127
(14,942,142) {1,265,896) 0 (15,224,656) (31,432,694)
0 0 0 2,526,053 2,526,053

0 0 22,014,258 0 22,014,258
(8,197,953) (1,219,026) 22,014,258 3,762,465 16,359,744
529,407 (1,640,151) 4,784,113 (3,728,266) (54,897)
23,520,462 1,268,557 0 49,037,820 73,826,839
(324,770) {222,209) 0 (3,086,159) (3,633,138)
23,195,692 1,046,348 0 45,951,661 70,193,701
$ 23,725,099 $ (593,803} $ 4,784,113 § 42,223,395 § 70,138,804

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ (54,897)

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management, support services, and risk management to individual funds. 1,358,267
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures
over the life of the assets

Capital asset purchases capitalized 31,926,276
Depreciation expense (8,835,232)
Capital asset sold-loss {7,426,558)
Proceeds from sale of captial assets (2,526,053}

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds
Accrued compensated absences (1,006,179)
Accrued interest (277,826)

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the statement of activities, but
do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not financial
resources 1,946,954

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds 332,567

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmentai
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. {13,319,414)

Net change in net assets - governmental activities $ 2,117,905

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Mortgage notes receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Deposits
Due from other funds
Due from component unit
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Real estate held for resale
Notes receivable

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
investments
Mortgage notes receivable, net
Notes receivable
Contracts receivable
Unamortized bond discounts and costs
Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings, improvements and utility plant
Machinery and equipment
Less, accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007

Business-type Activities

Governmental
Water/Sewer Parking Other Activities
Facilities Facilities Proprietary Internal
Fund Fund Funds Total Service Funds
18,339,154 § 7,082,365 § 12,803,534 $ 38,225,053 2,715,702
8,637,448 2,692,289 1] 11,329,737 14,474,322
7,265,979 27,688 990,470 8,284,137 33,390
0 0 2,835,398 2,835,398 0
1,156,172 77,872 292,724 1,526,768 135,432
[1] 0 0 ] 78,745
8,041,275 0 0 8,041,275 0
962,400 0 0 962,400 0
2,061,861 214,820 0 2,276,681 1,218,553
250,360 0 0 250,360 43,087
0 0 336,425 336,425 0
464,057 0 0 464,057 0
47,178,706 10,095,034 17,258,551 74,532,291 18,699,231
62,263,665 30,585,238 11,419,486 104,268,389 0
0 0 21,348,341 21,348,341 0
62,153 0 0 62,153 0
0 0 954,654 954,654 0
1,849,803 1,335,593 0 3,185,396 [}
7,518,280 43,587,356 326,700 21,433,336 8
42,031,933 17,344,727 3,718,555 63,095,215 0
657,181,994 13,742,255 19,496,244 690,420,493 903,586
25,573,182 1,228,106 123,227 26,924,515 8,932,170
(238,416,800) (6,625,720) {2,142,087) {247,184,607) {4,689,497)
493,889,589 39,276,724 21,522,639 554,688,952 5,146,259
558,065,210 71,197,555 55,245,120 684,507,885 5,146,259
605,243,916 § 81,292,589 $ 72,503,671 $ 759,040,176 $ 23,845,490

{Continued)
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
June 30, 2007

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water/Sewer Parking Other Activities
Facilities Facilities Proprietary internal
Fund Fund Funds Total Service Funds
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 6,306,289 $ 172,807 $ 1,502,609 §$ 7,981,705 $ 963,446
Accrued salaries and benefits 427,829 26,575 23,020 477,424 58,485
Compensated absences 326,078 15,912 4,796 346,786 255,269
Retainage 4,238,457 1,064,525 407,878 5,710,860 0
Due to other funds 0 0 1,366,195 1,366,195 1,478,759
Accrued liability for claims 0 0 0 0 15,901,813
Notes payable 0 0 45,000 45,000 0
Contracts payable 0 0 870,039 870,039 0
Capital lease payable short term 0 0 0 0 728,758
Accrued interest payable 1,841,530 939,379 102,396 2,883,305 0
Revenue bonds payable 9,865,000 740,000 0 10,605,000 0
Customer deposits 0 996 0 996 0
Cash Overdraft 0 0 0 0 0
Total current liabilities payable from current assets 23,005,183 2,960,194 4,321,833 30,287,310 19,386,530
Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable 0 1] 475,000 475,000 0
Capital lease payable 0 0 0 0 1,518,235
Contracts payable 0 0 1,866,018 1,866,018 0
Compensated absences 1,304,311 63,650 19,183 1,387,144 0
Revenue bonds payable, net 138,005,983 48,427,622 0 186,433,605 0
Total long-term liabilities 139,310,294 48,491,272 2,360,201 190,161,767 1,518,235
Total liabilities 162,315,477 51,451,466 6,682,134 220,449,077 20,904,765
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 404,206,617 15,797,664 21,522,639 441,526,920 5,146,259
Restricted 11,706,530 1,679,379 102,396 13,488,305 0
Unrestricted 27,015,292 12,364,080 44,196,502 83,575,874 (2,205,534)
Total net assets 442,928,439 29,841,123 65,821,537 538,591,099 2,940,725
Total liabilities and net assets $ 605,243,916 $ 81,292,589 § 72,503,671 $ 759,040,176 $ 23,845,490
Adjustment to refiect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related
to enterprise fund {(9,159,413)
Net assets of business type activities $ 529,431,686

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Materials and supplies
Contractural services
Other services and charges
Heat, light and power
Claims and premiums
Indirect costs
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Capital outlay
Debt service

Tota!l operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Other nonoperating revenue
Gain {loss) from sale of assets
Community promotions
Interest expense
Intergovernmental expenses
Amortization of bond costs

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Water & Sewer development contributions

Change in net assets
Total net assets - beginning net assets
Prior period adjustment

Beginning net assets, as restated

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-type Activities

Total net assets- ending net assets $

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related

to enterprise fund

Change in net assets of business-type activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Governmental
Water/Sewer Parking Other Activities
Facilities Facilities Proprietary internal

Fund Fund Funds Total Service Funds
97,987,282 $ 4,366,797 $ 3,982,156 $ 106,336,235 § 20,825,294
317,396 1,693,579 974,583 2,985,558 0
98,304,678 6,060,376 4,956,739 109,321,793 20,825,294
23,394,971 1,597,334 1,251,915 26,244,220 3,212,097
7,186,667 265,346 106,432 7,558,445 6,582,992

0 0 0 0 4,660

12,800,643 457,957 228,599 13,487,199 2,704,262
5,465,446 181,776 556,759 6,203,981 68,180

0 0 0 0 28,169,809

3,200,000 0 0 3,200,000 0
18,169,069 461,781 469,981 19,100,831 1,184,628
1,389,048 0 658,188 2,047,236 0

[] 0 0 0 426,844

0 0 0 0 101,235
71,605,844 2,964,194 3,271,874 77,841,912 42,454,707
26,698,834 3,096,182 1,684,865 31,479,881 (21,629,413)
3,397,872 1,956,743 1,360,680 6,715,295 1,158,353
81,588 74,806 15,297 171,691 0
(126,728) (30,701) 41,423 (116,006) (266,344)
(125,000) 0 0 (125,000) 0
(7,040,903) {1,733,684) (173,486) (8,948,073) 0
(368,078) 0 (1,472,311) (1,840,389) [
{159,280) (104,320} 0 (263,600) 0
(4,340,529) 162,844 (228,397) (4,406,082) 892,009
22,358,305 3,259,026 1,456,468 27,073,799 (20,737,404)
[ 0 3,433,367 3,433,367 16,917,468
{10,402,889) (1,530,387} (236,994) (12,170,270) 0
12,161,089 0 0 12,161,089 0
24,116,505 1,728,639 4,652,841 30,497,985 (3,819,936)
427,477,204 23,745,299 61,454,787 6,779,976
(8,665,270) 4,367,185 (286,091) {19,315)
418,811,934 28,112,484 61,168,646 6,760,661
442,928,439 $ 29,841,123 $ 65,821,537 $ 2,940,725

(5,178,203}
$__25319,782



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Due to (from) others

Transfers in

Transfers out

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets

Principal paid on capital lease

Principal paid on bonds and notes

Interest paid on debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments
Decrease in contract receivable, net
Increase in mortgage receivable, net
interest received

Rent received

Sale of inventory for resale

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2006

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2007

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Accrued salaries

Accrued vacation

Accrued liability for claims
Inventory

Customer Deposits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Water and Sewer development contributions
Amortization of bond cost

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Water/Sewer Parking Total Governmental
Facilities Facilities Nonmajor Activities Internal
Fund Fund Proprietary Funds Total Service Funds
97,995,521 $ 6,045,289 $ 5,076,939 § 109,117,749 § 21,293,770
(31,530,706) (1,801,354) (1,226,138) (34,558,198) (29,861,072)
(23,273,884) {965,160) (1,012,578) (25,251,622) (3,211,881)
43,190,931 3,278,775 2,838,223 49,307,929 (11,779,183)

236,393 0 1,366,195 1,602,588 (3.046,775)
0 0 3,433,367 3,433,367 16,917,468
(10,402,889) {1,530,387) (236,994) (12,170,270) 0
(10,166,496) (1,530,387) 4,562,568 (7,134,315} 13,870,693
(27,370,907) (11,920,106) {1,053,627) (40,344,640) (2,458,321)
0 0 0 0 {709,240)
(9,561,022) (37,154) (1,450,583) (11,048,759} 0
(8,486,700) {2,158,641) (221,815) (10,867,156) 0
(45,418,629) (14,115,901) (2,726,025) (62,260,555) (3,167,561)
0 0 (397,654) (397,654) (3,887,705)
22,061,704 12,242,000 524,867 34,828,571 0
0 0 911,364 911,364 0
{163,094) 0 (2,908,517) (3,071,611) 0
2,580,611 1,981,047 1,376,305 5,937,963 1,131,261
81,588 74,806 15,297 171,691 0
0 42,311 280,615 322,926 0
24,560,809 14,340,164 (197,723) 38,703,250 {2,756,444)
12,166,615 1,972,651 4,477,043 18,616,309 (3,832,495)
6,172,539 5,109,714 8,326,491 19,608,744 6,548,197
18,339,154 § 7,082,365 $ 12,803,534 § 38,225,053 $ 2,715,702
26,698,833 $ 3,096,182 § 1,684,866 $ 31,479,881 § (21,629,413)
18,169,069 461,781 469,981 19,100,831 1,184,628
1,389,048 0 658,188 2,047,236 0
0
(1,660,518) (15,087) 120,207 (1,555,398) 207,086
(250,360) 0 0 (250,360) (43,087)
(1,238,543) (224,595) (79,957) {1,543,095) 341,397
(8,536) 1,033 556 (6,947) (57)
129,624 1,772 {15,618) 115,778 273
0 [ 0 0 6,740,840
(37,686) (42,311) 0 (79,997) 1,157,761
0 0 0 0 261,390
16,492,098 182,593 1,153,357 17,828,048 8,850,231
43,190,931 § 3,278,775 § 2,838,223 § 49,307,929 § (11,779,182)
$ 12,161,089 - $ - 12,161,089 $ .
$ (159,280) (104,320} $ - (367,920) $ -



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND

June 30, 2007

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 128,163
Total assets $ 128,163
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 128,163
Total liabilities 128,163
Net Assets 0
Total net assets 0
Total liabilities and net assets $ 128,163

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

The Discretely Presented Component Units are presented separately to emphasize that
they are legally separate from the City, but are a part of the City’s reporting entity.

Columbia Action Council provides support to the community through the sponsorship
and promotion of community programs and festivals.

Columbia Development Corporation assists the City in promoting and improving the
growth and development of business concerns through the strengthening of the economic
and residential base of the community.

Columbia Housing Development Corporation assists the City in the development of
housing and to promote growth in the residential base of the community.

Eau Claire Development Corporation provides assistance in the conservation and
redevelopment of neighborhoods located in North Columbia.

Midlands Authority for Conventions, Sports, and Tourism directs and manages
activities and missions of the Columbia Metropolitan Convention Center and Visitor’s
Bureau.

South Columbia Development Corporation assists the city in promoting the livability,
improving the tax base, and enhancing the quality of housing in the South Columbia area.

TN Development Corporation promotes growth and develops opportunities for
affordable rental housing.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Columbia, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina incorporated in 1854, is located in the
central part of South Carolina. Columbia is the state capital as well as the county seat of Richland County. The City
has a population of 119,961 living within an area of 135,31 square miles. The Greater Columbia Metropolitan Area
consists of Lexington and Richland Counties and has an estimated population of 716,030. The City's economy is
driven by education, government, military, finance, and industry. In 1950, the City approved a charter adopting a
Council-Manager form of government and is governed by a six (6) member council and Mayor.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The more significant of these accounting
policies are described below.

A, REPORTING ENTITY

The basic financial statements of the City present the reporting entity that consists of the primary
government and those organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
could cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Using the criteria of GASB
Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," as amended by GASB Statement No. 39 “Determining
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units,” discretely presented component units are reported
in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally
separate from the government.

Blended Component Units

Public Facilities Corporation

This is a single purpose corporate entity that was formed in 2002 as a non-profit corporation to undertake
certain obligations with respect to the acquisition of real and personal property and the design, construction,
operation and financing of a multipurpose conference/convention center and other improvements. Its board
is comprised of the City Manager of Columbia, the Assistant City Manager for Development, and the
Finance Director or the equivalent thereof. For details of the outstanding debt see Note III J.

Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation

Under the guidelines of GASB 34, the Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation (a capital projects fund) is
considered a major fund for reporting purposes. This is a single purpose entity that was formed during
fiscal year 2007 to undertake certain obligations related to the City’s partnership with the University of
South Carolina (the University) to build two parking garages. These garages are part of the University’s
new research campus, Innovista. The Board of Directors is comprised of five members of City Council.
For further discussion of this component unit, see Note III. J.

Discretely Presented Component Units
Columbia Action Council (CAC)

The CAC, incorporated in 1979, provides support to the community through the sponsorship and promotion
of community programs and festivals. Partial funding is supplied by the City.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

Columbia Development Corporation (CDC)

Incorporated in 1980, the CDC was formed to assist the City in promoting and monitoring the growth and
development of business concerns through the strengthening of the economic and residential base of the
community. The nine member Board of Directors is composed of three members of City Council, the
Mayor, the City Manager and four members that are appointed by City Council. The Executive Director of
the CDC serves as an ex-officio Administrative Secretary. Funding for the CDC is derived from property
sales, contributions, appropriations from the City, and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Grants that are passed through the Community Development Special Revenue Fund.

Columbia Housing Development Corporation (CHDC)

The CHDC, an eleemosynary organization, was formed in 1980, to assist the City in the development of
housing and to promote growth in the residential base of the community. The twelve member Board of
Directors is composed of three members of City Council, the Mayor, the City Manager, and seven members
that are appointed by City Council. In an ex-officio capacity, city staff serves as the Secretary/Treasurer
and the Executive Director. Funding for the CHDC is derived from sale of properties, interest income,
mortgages receivable, and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Grants passed
through the Community Development Special Revenue Fund.

Eau Claire Development Corporation (ECDC)

Incorporated in 1993, the ECDC provides assistance in the conservation and redevelopment of
neighborhoods located in North Columbia. The nine-member Board of Directors is composed of three
Council members and six members appointed by City Council. Current funding is derived from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants passed through the Community
Development Special Revenue Fund and the City of Columbia sale of properties and rents.

Midlands Authority for Conventions, Sports, and Tourism (MACST)

The MACST, originally incorporated as the Midlands Regional Convention Center in July 2001, was
formed to oversee the development of a regional convention center and operate the convention center under
a long-term management arrangement for the mutual benefit of the City and Richland and Lexington
Counties of South Carolina (the Governmental Entities). The Governmental Entities have pledged their
tourism development fees to support this project. However, outside of this pledge of revenues, the City is
responsible for issuing the initial debt to fund this project and will retain title to the Convention Center.

South Columbia Development Corporation (SCDC)

The SCDC, incorporated in 1994, was formed to strengthen the livability, improve the tax base, and
enhance the quality of housing in the South Columbia area. The ten-member Board of Directors is
composed of three Council members and seven members appointed by City Council. Funding sources for
SCDC are the City of Columbia and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
grants passed through the Community Development Special Revenue Funds.

TN Development Corporation (TNDC)

Incorporated in 1993, as an eleemosynary organization, the TNDC was organized to promote growth and
develop opportunities for affordable rental housing. The ten member Board of Directors is composed of
three members from Council and seven members appointed by City Council. Funding for the TNDC is
derived from rental income, the State of South Carolina Housing Trust Fund, the Federal Home Loan Bank,
HOME Program funds passed through the Columbia Housing Development Organization (CHDO), and the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants passed through the Community
Development Special Revenue Fund.

Complete financial statements of the individual Component Units can be requested from the City's Interim
Chief Financial Officer.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
GOVERNMENT WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. The City’s intemal service funds do not provide outside uses or grant use. They
include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The City uses funds to report financial position and the results of operations. Fund accounting is designed
to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to

certain government functions or activities.

A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are
classified into three categories: Governmental, Proprietary and Fiduciary as follows:

Governmental Fund Tvpes:
General Fund

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City that accounts for all financial resources not
accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

These funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific taxes, governmental grants and other
revenue sources that are designated to finance particular functions or activities of the City. Special Revenue
Funds include:

e Accommodation Tax -- accounts for State Hotel Accommodations Tax receipts to promote
activities of City organizations.

e Tourism Development -- accounts for the Tourism Development Fee imposed upon the rental of
hotels, motels, and other lodging establishments in the City. This fee is dedicated to the attraction
of and improving the services provided to tourists.

e  Business Improvement District -- accounts for the Business Improvement District taxes assessed
on the businesses in the downtown area of the City to promote downtown beautification.

e  Hospitality Tax -- accounts for a local 2% gross sales tax on prepared food and beverages sold in
establishments.

e  Confiscated Drug Program -- accounts for the disposition of forfeited property and money seized
in Columbia by law enforcement agencies.

e Land Acquisition -- accounts for future land acquisition and development.

¢ County Services -- accounts for fire services and 911 emergency communications provided to
citizens outside the City limits and the reimbursement for expenditures from Richland County.

e  Other Programs -- provides for miscellaneous programs for park improvements and special events
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

e  Community Development Grants and Awards -- accounts for the Community Development Block
Grants.

e Justice Department Grants -- accounts for receipt of Federal and State funds for programs to
improve public safety and law enforcement to the community.

e  Other Grants -- accounts for the receipt of Federal and State funds used for various signal grants,
and highway safety grants, various tree-planting projects, and various public services and planning
projects.

Debt Service Fund

This fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of interest and principal on
the general long-term debt of the City, other than debt service payments financed by proprietary fund types.
Ad valorem taxes, interest earned on the investments of the Debt Service Fund and, if applicable, interest
eamned on investments of certain Capital Projects Funds are used for the payment of principal, interest, and
fiscal agent expenditures on the City's general obligation and revenue bonds, and bond anticipation notes.

Capital Projects Funds

The Capital Projects Funds account for all capital improvements, except those accounted for in Proprietary
Funds, financed by the City's general obligation bond issues, tax increment district property taxes, certain
Federal grants and other specific receipts. These funds include:

e Tax Increment District -- accounts for the construction and development of parks and
infrastructure, within the Congaree Vista Redevelopment District, and is funded by tax increment
district property tax revenues.

e  Streetscaping -- accounts for capital improvements to street landscaping.

e  General Obligation Bonds 2002 — accounts for funds designated from the General Obligation
Bonds Series 2002.

e  Parking Facilities Corporation — accounts for funds designated for the Innovista parking garages.
General Capital Projects-- accounts for various capital projects funded by various funds.

e  Miscellaneous Projects -- accounts for various capital projects funded by the General Fund.

Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s programs. This fund includes:

Anna Dickson Park Fund -- accounts for trust funds specifically intended for the income to be used for
beautification of the parks. The total expendable amount for this endowment is $287 and is shown as an
expendable trust on the government-wide and the fund financial statements. The funds are invested in an
interest bearing account. The amount invested equals the fair value.

37



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Proprietary Fund Tvpes:

Business-type Funds

The business-type funds are used to account for operations of the City (a) that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business, where the intent is for the cost of providing goods or services to be
recovered, in whole or in part, through user charges; or (b) where the City Council has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. These funds include:

Water/Sewer Facilities Fund -- accounts for water and sewer utility activities.

Hydro-Electric Plant -- accounts for hydro electric plant activities.

Storm Water Fund -- accounts for storm water utility activities

Parking Facilities Fund -- accounts for parking garage and parking ticket activities.

Transportation Operating Fund -- accounts for the operation of the Bus Transfer Station.
Redevelopment Programs Fund -- accounts for various home rehabilitation and mortgage lending
programs funded from various sources.

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a user
charge basis. These funds include:

e  Fleet Management -- accounts for the maintenance and repair of movable vehicles.
Support Services -- accounts for a decentralized governmental and business-type inventory
system, a central supply facility, procurement functions and the City's general maintenance
functions.

e  Risk Management -- accounts for the costs associated with self-funded liability plans for employee
health, worker's compensation, unemployment, and tort liability for all City departments.

Fiduciary Funds Types (Not included in government-wide statements):

Transactions, related to assets held by the City as an agent of a private organization, are accounted for in
Fiduciary Fund types. These are presented separately in the statements. The City's fiduciary fund types are
comprised of:

Agency Fund

This fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an agent and does not involve measurement of
results of operations.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

e  The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

o  The County Services Fund accounts for fire services provided to citizens outside the City limits
and the reimbursement for expenditures from Richland County.

e The Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation Fund accounts for certain obligations related to the
City’s partnership with University of South Carolina (the University) to build two parking
garages. These garages are part of the University’s new research campus, Innovista.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Ceontinued)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

e The Water and Sewer Facilities Fund accounts for the activities of the water and sewer facilities.
e  The Parking Facilities Fund accounts for the activities of the parking facilities.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met. Additionally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements, except for amounts due between the City’s governmental activities
and business-type activities.

The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using a current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets,
and the unreserved fund balance is a measure of available spendable resources.

All governmental fund types use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both
measurable and available). "Measurable” means the transaction can be identified, and "available" means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. Property taxes are considered available if they are collected within sixty days after year-end. A one-
year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. The City
considers all revenues available if they are collected within sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-term
debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the Debt Service
Fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available”
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by
the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of
the qualifying expenditures. When the revenue recognition criteria are met and the City has a legal claim to
the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet, and revenue is
recognized.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. The
accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when eamed, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also
have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type funds, subject to this
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidelines.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
government’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.

Estimates are used to determine depreciation expense, the allowance for doubtful accounts and certain claims and
judgment liabilities, among other accounts. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deposits

City procedures require that all unrestricted cash belonging to the City be placed in a "Pooled Cash"
account to maintain the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under this method, all
cash is pooled for investment purposes, and each fund has equity in the pooled amount.

The City considers cash and cash equivalents, (including restricted cash and cash equivalents), to be:
currency on hand, demand deposits with banks, amounts included in pooled cash and investment accounts,
and liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Investments

In accordance with GASB 31, investments in all funds are stated at fair value. State statutes authorize the
City to invest in certificates of deposit, United States Treasury and United States Agency obligations and
repurchase agreements secured by these obligations.

Inventory and Prepaid Assets

In the fund financial statements all governmental City inventories are recorded in the Internal Service Fund
at cost or estimated historical cost on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. All proprietary inventories are
recorded in the respective fund at cost or estimated historical cost on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. The
related expenditures or expenses are recognized when inventories are consumed. Changes in the year-end
inventory are reflected in expenses.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Real Estate
Real estate held for resale and real estate under development in the proprietary funds are recorded at the
lower of cost or net realizable value.

Morigage Notes and Notes Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses

Mortgage notes receivable, secured by the property, and other notes receivable are recorded in various
business-type funds and component units and are stated at unpaid principal balances net of an allowance for
loan losses. An allowance for loan losses is increased by charges-offs, net of recoveries. Management's
periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on past loan loss experiences, known and
inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay the loan,
estimated value of any underlying collateral, and current economic conditions.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Bad Debt
Accounts receivable are recorded in various funds and are stated net of their allowance for uncollectible
accounts.

All balances between funds that are outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from
other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Bond Discount and Issuance Costs

Bond discount and issuance costs are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over the term
of the applicable bonds, providing no material differences between the straight-line method and the interest
method.

Restricted Assets

Restricted accounts in the proprietary fund types are established to account for assets restricted for specific
purposes. Certain bond indentures of trust agreements require the establishment of (1) maximum annual
principal and interest payments, unless a surety bond was provided, or (2) the next succeeding principal and
accrued interest payment.

Capital Assets

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment,
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns. Capital assets are defined
by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life
in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed,
net of interest earned on the invested proceeds during the same period.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary

fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide financial statements.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Improvements 10-50 years
Buildings 15-50 years
Equipment 3-15 years

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the
straight-line method. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of
the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as an “other financing source” net
of the applicable premium or discount. Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES

Property Tax Revenues

Real property and business personal property taxes, excluding automobile property taxes, become
enforceable liens as of January 1. Real property taxes are levied in November and are payable without
penalty before January 16. Automobile property taxes are levied throughout the year depending on vehicle
tag expiration dates. Business personal property taxes are levied in September and are payable by January
15. Property taxes are assessed and collected by Richland County under a joint billing and collection
agreement. The City collects property taxes assessed in Lexington County on property annexed into
Columbia

That portion of General Fund property taxes allocated for payment of debt services is transferred to the
Debt Service Fund. All Special District, Tax Increment property taxes are recorded as revenue in the Debt
Service Fund and any excess revenues over debt service requirements are remitted as principle outstanding
on the balance of the debt.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES (Continued)

Sales Tax Revenue

The City incorporated a Local Option Sales Tax during the year ended June 30, 2006 of 1% to offset a
reduction in property taxes. The tax generated $15.5 million and was capped in order to prevent a windfall
effect of taxes collected. This “cap” created deferred revenue of $.5 million in the General Fund. Deferred
revenue of the Local Option Sales Tax will be utilized to offset any reduction of property tax revenue
and/or adjust future property tax increases.

Investment Income

The City has a policy of allocating interest income on pooled cash and investments to appropriate funds on
an annual basis. The allocation is based on a percentage of the fund's average daily equity in pooled cash
and investments to the total average daily-pooled equity in pooled cash and investments.

Grant Revenue

Revenues from Federal and State grants are recognized when qualifying expenditures are made and all
grant requirements have been met. Cash received by the City prior to the City making qualifying
expenditures is recorded as deferred revenue.

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to allow employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave benefits up to
certain maximum hours. Once an employee has completed the probationary period, accumulated unused
vacation and 20% of unused sick leave, as restricted below, are payable upon termination of employment
with the City. An employee with service of less than ten years may receive up to a maximum of two weeks
of vacation. An employee with service of ten to twenty years may receive up to a maximum of four weeks,
and service of over twenty years may receive a maximum of five weeks. Maximum carryover allowed per
employee is two calendar years of accrued compensated absences.

The liability for compensated absences in the financial statements is calculated based upon recorded
balances of unused leave for which the City would compensate employees if employment ended June 30,
2007. The change in this calculated amount from the previous year is expensed in current operations.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water/sewer facilities fund, the parking facilities fund and the transportation operations fund are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for business-type funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Expenditures/Expenses
In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities.
In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:
Governmental Funds — By Characteristic: ~ Current (further classified by function)

Debt Service
Capital Outlay
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES (Continued)
Proprietary Funds — By Operating and Nonoperating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

Interfund transfers

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as interfund
transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual
governmental funds have been eliminated.

F. FUND BALANCE

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A, BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

A legal operating budget is prepared annually for the General Fund on a GAAP basis. Informal budgetary
controls are maintained for other fund types, and therefore, budgetary comparisons to actual amounts are
not presented.

The approved budget and amendments are legally enacted through passage of an ordinance authorizing the
City Manager to administer the budget and to transfer necessary appropriations among funds. Additional
budget appropriations must be approved by Council, and at the fund level expenditures may not legally
exceed budgeted appropriations.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements and supplementary information
have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budget during the year. Appropriations,
except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances and unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at year-
end.

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN APPROPRIATED BUDGET
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Adopted Final Budget Revised
Budget Amendments Budget
General Fund § 94,851,113 § 5,867,225 $ 100,718,338

B. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting represents commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.
These contracts record expenditures as reserves to the applicable appropriation in each fund. At year-end,
encumbrances are carried forward and related appropriations are considered to be budget amendments.
Certain of the encumbrances will be paid by subsequent receipt of entitlements.
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
C. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

Business Improvement District, Other Grants, County Services and Other Programs of the Special Revenue
Fund had a combined deficit fund balance of $1,367,517 at June 30, 2007. General Capital Projects and
Miscellaneous Projects, which are capital projects funds, had a total deficit fund balance of $2,321,142.
Support Services and Risk Management of the Internal Service Funds have a combined deficit of
$3,935,781. Eau Claire Development Corporation, a component unit, has a total deficit fund balance of
$842,125. TN Development Corporation, a component unit, has a total deficit fund balance of $401,876.
Revenues and transfers from other funds in subsequent years will fund these deficits.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is self insured for medical and dental coverage. Health claims for individuals are limited to a
lifetime amount of $1,000,000 with a stop-loss provision of $275,000 per year. The accrued liability for
prior year claims represents estimates for medical and dental claims incurred as of June 30, 2007. Some of
these claims were reported at June 30, 2007, while others may not be reported until a later date. The
incurred but not reported (IBNR) is estimated by the City's independent insurance administrator based on
historical results.

The City self-insures worker's compensation and general liability programs. The City accounts for the
Worker's Compensation program in the Risk Management Fund (an internal service fund) by charging
premiums to user departments. The stop-loss provision for Worker's Compensation is $800,000. The limits
of liability for tort actions not specifically exempt by the South Carolina Government Tort Claims Act are
$300,000 per person and $6060,000 per occurrence.

The Risk Management Fund establishes claim liabilities (health, dental, worker’s compensation and legal)
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have
been reported but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for
which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of
salvage, subrogation, and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for
unpaid claims. Because actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in
doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claim liabilities does not
necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for coverage such as general liability. Adjustments to
claim liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the period in which they are made.

Changes in the aggregate liability for health, dental, worker’s compensation and legal claims were as
follows:

Current
Year
Claims and

Beginning Changes in Claims Ending

Fiscal Year Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2001 $ 6,477,288 $ 9,532,803 $ (9,198,983) $ 6,811,108
2002 6,811,108 10,066,475 (11,641,002) 5,236,581
2003 5,236,581 14,028,269 (12,344,944) 6,919,906
2004 6,919,906 24,459,308 (15,449,295) 15,929,919
2005 15,929,919 18,002,543 (24,871,127) 9,061,335
2006 9,061,335 21,391,141 (21,291,502) 9,160,974
2007 9,160,974 22,532,516 (15,791,677) 15,901,813
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

D. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fiscal 2007 aggregate liability includes the following amounts for legal claims: $1,667,464 beginning
liability, $7,175,528 current year claims and changes in estimates, and $1,466,292 claims payments. The
ending liability for legal claims is $7,376,700.

Property and Boiler Coverage policies are accounted for in the Risk Management Fund, as well as other
small insurance policies, such as surety bond coverage and miscellaneous floaters. Funds are charged
expenditures based on premium amounts and administrative charges. The City has had no significant
reductions in insurance coverage during the year and settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for
each of the past three fiscal years.

DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2007, the City had the following investments (in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than } 13 4.7 8-29
Money market $29,709 $29,709 $0 $0 $0
U.S. Government Securities 81,495 19,970 35,686 25,839 0
Mortgage Backed Securities 48,665 964 0 0 47,701
Repurchase Agreement 23,500 0 23,500 0 0
Total $183,369 $50,643 $59,186 $25,839 $47,701

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with its investment policy the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values typically
by limiting the maturity of its portfolio to no more than seven years. However, during the year ended June
30, 2007, the City purchased Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation mortgage backed securities, that
have maturities extending into 2036.

Credit Risk

State law and the City’s investment policy limit investments to the following securities:

- Obligations of the United States and agencies thereof.

- General obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political subdivisions.

- Certificates of deposit where the certificates are collaterally insured by securities described above held by
a third party as escrow agent or custodian, of a market value not less than the amount of the certificates
of deposit so secured, including interest.

- Repurchase agreements when collateralized by securities set forth above.

At June 30, 2007 the City owned only obligations of the United States and its agencies and collateralized
certificates of deposit.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy prohibits investing more than 10% of the total portfolio in a single holding or
more than 25% in any one issuer except for United States Treasury securities and money market mutual
funds.
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DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

The City’s cash deposit policy requires that United States Treasury securities of a fair value equal to the
bank deposits be held by a third party custodian in the City’s name. At June 30, 2007 the City was in full
compliance with its collateral policy.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

Similarly the City uses an independent investment custodian who takes direction from the outside portfolio
managers and independently settles all trades with the securities being held by the custodian on behalf of
and in the name of the City.

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables for the primary government, as of year-end, including the applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts, are as follows (in thousands):

Columbia Non-
Parking Major Internal

Governmental activities General Facilities Total Service Total
Property taxes $ 958 % 0 3 5,534 % 0 $ 6492
Federal government 0 0 3,049 0 3,049
State government 933 0 461 0 1,394
Accounts 1,613 5,614 457 33 7,717
Accrued Interest Receivable 119 0 118 135 372
Net total receivables $ 3623 § 5,614 § 9619 $ 168 $ 19,024

Water/ Non-

Sewer Parking Major

Facilities Facilities Total Total

Business-type activities
Accounts $ 7,266 § 28 § 990 $ 8,284
Contracts 0 0 955 955
Interest receivable 1,156 78 293 1,527
Notes receivable 526 0 4] 526
Mortgage notes 0 0 24,184 24,184
Net total receivables $ 8948 § 106§ 26422 $ 35,476

The above receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectible accounts. Management’s estimates of
uncollectible accounts at June 30, 2007 are as follows:

General Fund $ 800,157
Water/Sewer Facilities $ 1,392,588
Parking Facilities $ 1,514,690
Non Major Business-type activities $ 1,602,095

Receivables for the Component Units consi_st of items totaling $1,092,926 at June 30, 2007. As of June 30,
2007, the allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $119,000.
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DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Contractual rights and related obligations:

During the year ended June 30, 2004 the City acquired the contractual right to receive approximately
$1,000,000 per year for seven years in monthly installments. At the same time, the City contracted to pay
$1,000,000 per year annually for seven years to an unrelated governmental entity. No interest was
specified in either contract. This receivable and related payable has been discounted at 4.75% (prime rate
at the date of the transaction).

C. MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLE AND REVOLVING LOAN POOLS

The various mortgage programs involve the Community Development loan programs which are reported in
the non-major proprietary funds and certain component units. The various types of loan programs are
complex in nature and require specialized accounting methods, including the valuation of notes and
mortgages receivable at the lower of cost or market.

Primary government:

Mortgage notes receivable in the various Community Development Revolving Loan programs are
evaluated annually and loan loss allowances are applied where appropriate. All mortgages are secured by
the property and delinquent mortgages receivable are estimated to be $1,602,095 as of June 30, 2007.

Component units:

The Columbia Housing Development Corporation (CHDC) has mortgage notes receivable consisting of
$995,196. Mortgage notes receivable consist of loans to individuals under various federal housing lending
programs and have various interest rates and maturity dates. The Columbia Housing Development
Corporation is considered a real estate development corporation and revenue recognition is applied under
the cost recovery method.

The Columbia Development Corporation (CDC) has mortgage notes receivable consisting of $611,819.
Mortgage notes receivable consist of two loans to corporations for the purpose of community development
and have various interest rates and maturity dates. The Columbia Development Corporation is considered a

" community development corporation and revenue recognition is applied under the cost recovery method.

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2007 are as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
Funds:

General $ 9,976,216 § 0
Water/Sewer Facilities Fund 8,041,275 0
Other Governmental Funds 0 15,172,538
Other Proprietary Funds 0 1,366,195
Internal Service Fund 0 1,478,758
Total $ 18,017,491 § 18,017,491

The outstanding balance between funds results primarily from one of the following time lags: (1) the dates
that interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur; (2) transactions are
recorded in the accounting system; and (3) payments between funds are made.
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L DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

The interfund transfers at June 30, 2007 are as follows:

Transfers Transfers
Out In

General $ 14,942,142  $ 6,744,189
County Services 1,265,896 46,871
Non major governmental funds 15,224,656 16,461,068
Water/Sewer 10,402,889 0
Parking 1,530,387 0
Internal service funds 0 16,917,469
Non major proprietary fund 236,994 3,433,367

$ 43,602,964 § 43,602,964

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt service fund
as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2) move restricted amounts from borrowing to
the debt service fund to establish mandatory reserve accounts, 3) move unrestricted general fund revenues
to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grants
programs.

E. OPERATING LEASES
The City is committed under various operating leases for office and copier equipment. Operating lease

expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2007, were $729,432. Future minimum lease payments for these
leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2008 $ 729,308
2009 562,305
2010 562,936
2011 517,496
2012 525,156
Total $ 2,897,201
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F. CAPITAL LEASE

A capital lease is an agreement, which specifies a transfer of benefits and risk of ownership to the lessee.
The City has entered into an agreement to lease equipment under this criterion. The funds are being
utilized to upgrade the City’s telecommunication connection equipment, update computer equipment, and
computer software. As of June 30, 2007, the purchase of this equipment has been completed. The cost and
net book value of the assets acquired to date is $4,362,805 and $2,469,993, respectively. The lease has
been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.

The capital lease outstanding as of June 30, 2007, is as follows:

Maturity Interest Total Balance
Date Rate Outstanding
Various Funds:
Computer Equipment 2010 2.75% $ 2,246,993
2,246,993
Minimum lease payments at June 30, 2007 are as follows:
Year Ending June 30, Amount
2008 $ 790,595
2009 790,595
2010 790,595
Total 2,371,785
Less: amount representing interest 124,792
Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 2,246,993
G. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2007, are as follows (in thousands):
Balance
Governmental activities June 30, 2006, as Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: restated (Note VI) Increases Decreases June 30, 2007
Land $ 37,601 § 0 3 0 8 37,601
Construction in progress 14,019 30,067 (3,409) 40,677
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 51,620 30,067 (3,409) 78,278
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 157,765 217 (6,087) 151,895
Machinery and equipment 37,912 3,802 (6,906) 34,808
Infrastructure 11,766 1,947 0 13,713
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 207,443 5,966 (12,993) 200,416
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements (19,615) (4,689) 184 (24,120)
Machinery and equipment (24,666) (3,646) 6,385 (21,927)
Infrastructure (4,674) (604) 0 (5,278)
Total accumulated depreciation (48,955) (8,839) 6,569 (51,325)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 158,488 (2,973) (6,424) 149,091
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 210,108 § 27,094 § (9,833) % 227,369
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KII. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance
Business-type activities: June 30, 2006, as Balance
Capital assets, not being deprecia’[ed: restated (Note VI) Increases Decreases June 30, 2007
Land $ 21,433 § 0 s 0 $ 21,433
Construction in progress 64,136 37,851 (38,892) 63,095
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 85,569 37,851 (38,892) 84,528
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 639,418 51,003 0 690,421
Machinery and equipment 27,517 1,394 {1,986) 26,925
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 666,935 52,397 (1,986) 717,346
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements (217,502) (16,300) 0 (233,802)
Machinery and equipment (13,032) (2,801) 2,450 (13,383)
Total accumulated depreciation (230,534) (19,101) 2,450 (247,185)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 436,401 33,296 464 470,161
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 521,970 § 71,147 % (38,428) § 554,689

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities 3 8,839,232
Business-type activities:
Water/Sewer facilities $ 18,169,069
Storm Water facilities 116,195
Parking facilities 461,781
Transportation operations 30,320
Hydro electric plant 323,466
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities 3 19,100,831

Construction commitments as of June 30, 2007 totaled $54,002,757.

Under the provisions of GASB 34, the City switched from the modified method to the straight line
depreciation method of reporting infrastructure during the year ended June 30, 2006. To determine the
historical value of the infrastructure, the City used the information provided by the Department of Utilities
and Engineering on streets acquired during fiscal years 2003 through 2006. This information provided the
street name and the cost or estimated cost of the street at acquisition. These amounts also included
sidewalks, curbs, and gutters adjacent to the street acquired. The City determined the life of the streets to
be 20 years using the “Capital Assets of Local Governments Suggested Useful Lives”. Infrastructure assets
acquired prior to 1986 would have been fully depreciated and were not considered in this calculation. For
those assets acquired between fiscal years 1986 and 2006, the acquisition date is assumed to have been on
the last day of the fiscal year. Infrastructure assets acquired during fiscal year 2007 were depreciated from
the date of acquisition.
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I DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
H. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City has two approved deferred compensation plans administered by the South Carolina Public
Employees Deferred Compensation Commission. Although the City makes no contributions to either plan,
employees may elect to participate under either Internal Revenue Service Section 401K or 457. The
amount of the deferred compensation is expensed as salaries and a like amount is remitted to the Deferred
Compensation Commission. The City owns none of the plan assets and has no liability to its employees.

L POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City provides post-employment health care benefits, in accordance with City policy, to all employees
who retire from the City under early or regular retirement and have been employed by the City for twenty
years or more. Currently, 610 retirees meet those requirements. The City pays all premiums for all
qualifying retirees. For the year ended June 30, 2007 premiums totaled $277,506. Retirees paid dependent
coverage of $412,220. Currently, the City is financing the post-employment retirement benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis and expenditures for these insurance premiums are recorded in the General and
Water/Sewer Funds.

The following schedule reflects the costs and number of participants in the City's health care program.

Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Participants:
Active 2,162 2,069 1,999 2,007 1,927
Retired 610 514 512 503 487
Total Employer Claims
Active $10,754,287  $8,699,735 $8,430,837 $7,265,549  $5,714,607
Retired 4,909,064 4,683,189 3,400,508 3,168,890 2,516,346
% of Active Payroll:
Active 12.73% 10.91% 10.91% 9.71% 8.21%
Retired 5.81% 5.87% 4.40% 4.24% 3.61%
Total 18.54% 16.78% 1531% 13.95% 11.82%

In June 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) adopted Statements No. 43 and No.
45 which are new accounting and reporting standards for other post-employment benefits (OPEB). OPEB
include post-employment benefits such as medical, prescription drug, and dental insurance benefits
provided for retired City government employees. Currently, the City funds these benefits on a pay-as-you-
go basis. The new standards, which the City will adopt during the year ending June 30, 2008, will require
the City to record the annual required cost (ARC) to fund these benefits and disclose in the notes to the
basic financial statements the actuarially determined unfunded liability (an estimate of accumulated
benefits expected to be paid in future years) along with current costs associated with these benefits. The
City currently estimates that the ARC will be from $10 to $20 million for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2008 and the unfunded liability will be $50 to $150 million, depending on interest rate assumption, method
of amortization, and any plan changes that the City may decide to make.
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J. LONG-TERM DEBT

Balance Balance Amount
6/30/2006 Additions Deletions 6/30/2007 Due in 2008

Governmental activities:

Notes payable $ 1,500,000 $ 2,313,526 §$ (75,000) § 3,738,526 § 75,000
Bond anticipation notes 0 6,600,000 0 6,600,000 6,600,000
General obligation bonds 18,830,000 0 (1,400,000) 17,430,000 1,410,000
Revenue bonds 51,195,000 13,070,000 (2,080,000) 62,185,000 2,175,000
Tax increment bonds 14,245,754 0 (4,004,169) 10,241,585 3,011,903
Unamortized bond premiums 2,975,705 0 (135,099) 2,840,606 0
Capital lease payable 2,956,233 0 (709,240) 2,246,993 728,758
Compensated absences 5,540,689 6,546,868 (5,540,689) 6,546,868 1,258,320
Total governmental activities 97,243,381 28,530,394 (13,944,197) 111,829,578 15,258,981
Business-type activities:

Notes payable 1,140,000 0 (620,000) 520,000 45,000
Revenue bonds 204,380,000 0 (9,735,000) 194,645,000 10,605,000
Contracts payable 3,566,640 0 (830,585) 2,736,055 870,039
Unamortized premium 2,396,414 0 (2,809) 2,393,605 0
Compensated absences 1,618,153 1,733,930 (1,618,153) 1,733,930 346,786
Total business-type activities 213,101,207 1,733,930 (12,806,547) 202,028,590 11,866,825
Total all long-term debt $ 310,344,588 § 30,264,324 § (26,750,744) $§ 313,858,168 § 27,125,806

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are
included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year-end, $255,269 of internal service funds
compensated absences is included in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, claims and
judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund. The City has complied in all
material respects with the bond covenants as outlined in each issue's indenture.
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

J. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Business-type activities
Year
Ending Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Note Payable = Note Payable Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Total Interest
2008 3 10,605,000 $ 9,848,825 % 45,000 s 698 $ 10,650,000 § 9,849,523
2009 11,190,000 9,269,305 25,000 356 11,215,000 9,269,661
2010 11,795,000 8,671,434 25,000 356 11,820,000 8,671,790
2011 12,450,000 8,009,798 425,000 6,037 12,875,000 8,015,835
2012 13,070,000 7,384,425 0 0 13,070,000 7,384,425
2013-2017 25,975,000 31,029,601 0 0 25,975,000 31,029,601
2018-2022 31,155,000 24,051,058 0 0 31,155,000 24,051,058
2023-2027 35,640,000 16,037,890 0 0 35,640,000 16,037,890
2028-2032 29,055,000 6,904,282 0 0 29,055,000 6,904,282
2033-2037 13,710,000 2,123,500 0 0 13,710,000 2,123,500
$ 194,645,000 $ 123,330,117 $ 520,000 s 7,447 $ 195,165,000 $ 123,337,564
Notes Payable
Governmental Activities :
$1,500,000 note secured for development costs for Drew Wellness Center.
Annual principal installments of $75,000
through August 14, 2026
Interest rate: 0.0% $ 1,425,000

$2,313,526 note secured for the construction of a 1,450 parking space parking deck for Innovista
Annual principal installments of $5,000 to $15,000
through March 1, 2017
Interest rate: Adjusted LIBOR rate (5.4048%)
Maximum draw amount: $5,185,000 2,313,526

Total Governmental Activities Notes Payable $ 3,738,526

Business-type Activities :
$180,000 HUD 108 note, Series 1999-A
Annual principal installments of $20,000
through August 1, 2007
Interest rate: 4.61% $ 20,000

$180,000 HUD 108 note, Series 1999-A
Annual principal installments of $25,000 to $425,000
through August 1, 2010

Interest rate: 5.56% 500,000
Total Business-type Activities Notes Payable $ 520,000
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DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

J. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

In February of 2007, the City created the Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation (the Corporation), a blended
component unit, and entered into an agreement with Richland County and the University of South Carolina (the
University), related to the construction and operations of two parking garages. These garages are part of the
University’s development of a research campus known as Innovista. Under this agreement, the City agreed to issue
$7,750,000 in bond anticipation notes (BANS), of which $6,600,000 were issued, to fund a portion of the
construction costs of the first garage. Richland County agreed to issue the same amount of bond anticipation notes
to assist in the funding of the first garage, with the remainder of the costs coming from resources of the University.
In December of 2007, the City issued general obligation bonds (see Subsequent Events footnote) and retired the
bond anticipation notes.

Under this agreement, the City owns the garage and the cost of the garage is included on the governmental
activities statement of net assets. Under the operating agreement, the University has agreed to operate the garage,
and the revenues related to the garage are remitted to the City and Richland County for the retirement of the debt.

Governmental Activities :
$3,760,000 City of Columbia General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes, Series
Annual principal installment of $3,760,000
through December 12, 2007
Interest rate: 4.375% $ 3,760,000

$2,840,000 City of Columbia General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes,
Series 2006R
Annual principal installment of $2,840,000
through December 12, 2007

Interest rate: 5.5% 2,840,000
Total General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes $ 6,600,000

General Obligation Bonds

The City has issued General Obligation Bonds to fund building programs of the City and also to refinance debt
issued to fund parking facilities. The City has complete liability for the retirement of these obligations.
Principal payments on all bonds are due annually and interest is due semi-annually.

The South Carolina Constitution limits local unit borrowing power to 8 percent of its assessed property value.
The limitation excludes bonded indebtedness existing prior to December 1, 1977, (date of the Constitutional
Amendment), certain special levies assessed on properties located in an area receiving special benefits, and
other prescribed indebtedness approved by the voters.

In accordance with Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and Sections 1.103-13 to
1.103-15 of the related Treasury Regulations, the City must rebate to the federal government “arbitrage
profits” earned on governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage profits are the excess of the
amount earned on investments over the interest paid on the borrowings, if any.

56



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007

HEL. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
J. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2007, are as follows:

Governmental Activities :
$9,400,000 City of Columbia General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998A
Proceeds for: Refund Series 1991A General Obligation Bonds
Annual Principal Instaliments of $770,000 to $930,000
through February 1, 2012
Interest Rate: 4.3106.0% $ 4,310,000

$15,500,000 City of Columbia General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002
Proceeds for: Infrastructure improvements, acquisition of land,
Annual Principal Installments of $575,000 to $1,190,000
through June 1, 2022

Interest Rate: 2.75t04.625 % 13,120,000
Total Governmental Activities General Obligation Bonds $ 17,430,000
Special District Debt

Title 31, Chapter 6 of the South Carolina Code of Laws allows municipalities to redevelop deteriorating areas
using incremental tax revenues from property owners located in those areas. In order to finance the
development of the Congaree Vista area, the City issued bonds, which are repaid from the incremental taxes of
property owners in that neighborhood. The Water and Sewer Facilities Fund revenues are pledged as a junior
lien to secure this Special District Tax Increment Debt.

Special District Debt Outstanding at June 30, 2007 is as follows:

Governmental Activities :
$2,350,000 Tax Increment Bonds Series of 1999
Annual principal installments of $159,000 to $205,297
through March 15, 2014
Interest rate 4.75% $ 1,306,585

$25,000,000 Tax Increment Bonds Series of 2001
Annual principal installments of $1,500,000 to $3,300,000
through December 1, 2011
Interest rate 2.75% to 5.0% 8,935,000

Total Government Activities Special District Debt $ 10,241,585
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DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
J. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Revenue Bonds

Revenue bonds are special obligations of the City payable from revenues derived from certain operations. The
City's revenue bond ordinances stipulate that the City maintain certain debt service, operations, and renewal
and replacement funds.

The second Innovista garage is being funded by the issuance of $13,070,000 tax-exempt South Carolina Jobs-
Economic Development Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2007. The City, through the Corporation, has
ownership of the second garage. This garage is included on the governmental activities statement of net assets.
This garage is operated by the University, and the revenues from the garage are remitted to the Corporation to
retire the debt. Interest payments for these bonds began on April 1, 2007. The principal balances of these
bonds are payable in monthly installments beginning September 1, 2008, together with interest on the unpaid
balance, with a final payment of all principal and interest, due and payable in full on March 1, 2031. Interest
is at a rate per annum equal to 95% of the LIBOR Rate, which was 5.4048% at June 30, 2007.

An additional $5,185,000 taxable (based on percent of garage used for private purposes) construction and term
loan was made to the Corporation by a bank for the second garage that enables the Corporation to draw down
proceeds from the loan as needed during the construction of the second garage. The principal balance and any
accrued interest are due in full on March 1, 2017. Interest is payable at an adjusted LIBOR rate, which is a rate
of interest per annum equal to the One Month Libor plus 1.5% per year. This rate is adjusted monthly on the
first day of each month for each LIBOR interest period (5.4048%, at June 30, 2007). At June 30, 2007,
$2,313,526 was outstanding on the term loan.

In the event of foreclosure of this debt, no judgment for any deficiency upon the indebtedness will be sought or
obtained by the bank against the City.

Revenue bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2007 are as follows:

Governmental Activities :
$19,365,000 Certificates of Participation Hospitality Bond 2004
Payable from revenues derived by the City from hospitality taxes
Annual principal installments of $680,000 to $1,495,000
through February 1, 2025
Interest rate: 3.75 to 5.25% $ 18,265,000

$36,570,000 Certificates of Participation Convention Center Bond 2002
Payable from revenues derived by the City from tourism development fees
Annual principal instaliments of $1,305,000 to $2,810,000
through June 1, 2022
Interest rate: 2.0 to 5.25% 30,850,000

$13,070,000 South Carolina Jobs-Economic Development Authority Bond 2007
Payable from revenues derived by the City from operation of the garage
Annual principal installments of $250,000 to $920,000
through March 1, 2031
Interest rate: Rate per annum equal to 95% of LIBOR 13,070,000

Total Government Activities Revenue Bonds $ 62,185,000
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L. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

J.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Business-type Activities :

Parking Facilities Fund:

$8,605,000 Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
Payable from revenues derived by the City from operation of off-street and
on-street parking facilities.
Proceeds for: Refund Series 1987 Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds
Annual principal installments of $265,000 to $680,000
through December 1, 2013
Interest rate: 3.2 to 5.875%

$39,895,000 Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A
Payable from revenues derived by the City from operation of off-street and
on-street parking facilities.
Proceeds for: Expand City parking facilities.
Annual principal installments of $1,240,000 to $3,015,000
through February 1, 2037 '
Interest rate: 4.375to0 5.0%

$ 5,380,000 Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2005B
Payable from revenues derived by the City from operation of off-street and
on-street parking facilities.
Proceeds for: Expand City parking facilities.
Annual principal installments of $255,000 to $1,120,000
through February 1, 2017
Interest rate: 4.88 to 5.2%

Total Parking Facilities Revenue Bonds

Water and Sewer Fund:

$74,765,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1993
Payable from revenues derived from the City's water and sewer system.
Proceeds for: Refunding all Series 1989 ($31,984,646) and all allocated
1991 Series ($34,935,000 in May 1993)
Annual principal installments of $960,000 to $8,590,000
through February 1, 2012
Interest rate: 3.51t05.7%

$61,125,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999
Payable from revenues derived from the City's water and sewer system.
Proceeds for: Cost of improvements to the System
Annual principal installments of $255,000 to $1,120,000
through February 1, 2010
Interest rate: 3.6 10 6.0%
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Il DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

J. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

$41,500,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
Payable from revenues derived by the City's water and sewer system.
Proceeds for: Refunding portion of Series 1991 ($3,370,000 and portion of
Series 1999 ($36,045,000)
Annual principal installments of $210,000 to $4,985,000
through February 1, 2019
Interest rate: 3.375t0 5.5% . $ 37,975,000

$60,000,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2005
Payable from revenues derived by the City's water and sewer system.
Proceeds for: Cost of improvements to the System
Annual principal installments of $4,655,000 to $6,385,000
through February 1, 2030

Interest rate: 3.6 10 5.0% 60,000,000

Total Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 145,320,000

Total Business-type Activities Revenue Bonds $194,645,000
Defeasance Debt:

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are
not included in the City’s financial statements. On June 30, 2007, revenue bonds outstanding,
considered defeased in previous years, are approximately $45,000,000 in the Water and Sewer
Facilities Fund.

Conduit Debt:

Resolution 2006-027 passed June 28, 2006 was issued in support of the issuance of not exceeding
$4,500,000 in revenue bonds by JEDA for the Palmetto Health Foundation Project. While the City
is not obligated for the repayment of conduit type debt, disclosure is required in the notes to the
financial statements. As of June 30, 2007, the balance of this conduit debt was $4,150,850.
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PENSION PLANS
The City’s retirement plaus are as follows:

Description of Plans

As a condition of employment, all eligible City employees are required to participate in a pension plan. All
firemen and law enforcement officers must belong to the South Carolina Police Officers' Retirement
System (SCPORS). All other eligible employees must belong to the South Carolina Retirement System
(SCRS). Both plans are a cost-sharing multiple-employer Public Employee Retirement System (PERS)
administered by the Retirement Division of the State Budget and Control Board. Retirement costs are
funded by withholding from the employees' salaries, and by a contribution from the City of a percentage of
the employees’ salaries. Both Retirement Systems are administered by the South Carolina Retirement
System, which is a state agency. The City has no fiduciary responsibility for or further liability for either of
the retirement plans beyond their current contributions, except as noted below, which are established to
fund prior year's liabilities. A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial statements and
required supplementary information for the South Carolina Retirement System and Police Officers
Retirement System is issued and publicly available by writing the South Carolina Retirement System, Post
Office Box 11960, Columbia, South Carolina 29211-1960.

Basic Provisions

Benefit provisions are established under the authority of Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, Under
current statutes pertaining to the SCRS, member employees who retire at age 65 or after 28 years of
credited service are entitled to an annual full service retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to
1.82 percent of the average final compensation (average compensation over the last three years of credited
service) times years of credited service. A member with at least 25 years of credited service who terminates
employment may continue to pay employee and employer contributions until 28 years of credited service
credit is reached. The contributions will be made through the most recent employer on a regular basis and
remitted to the South Carolina Retirement System.

Under current statutes pertaining to the SCPORS, member employees who retire at age 65 or after 25 years
of credited service are entitled to an annual full service retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal
to 2.14 percent of average final compensation times years of credited service.

Member employees who are at least 60 years of age may elect early retirement in which case the full
service benefit is reduced by 5 percent for each year the employee's age at retirement is less than 65. In
either case, any unrecovered contributions are payable upon death and cost of living adjustments are
evaluated annually on an ad hoc basis. Full service or early retirees may elect other optional methods of
benefit distributions, including lump sum distributions, benefit levels coordinated with the retiree's social
security benefits and distributions to a named beneficiary. Benefits are fully vested on reaching 5 years of
service. The SCRS and SCPORS also provide life insurance, survivor and disability benefits to all member
employees.

Funding Policy

South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS)

From July 1, 1988 — June 30, 2005 employees participating in the SCRS were required to contribute 6
percent of eligible compensation. Effective July 1, 2006 the employee the employee contribution rate
increased to 6.50 percent of eligible compensation. Effective July 1, 2006, the employer contribution rate
was 10.95 percent which includes a 3.25 percent surcharge to fund retiree health and dental insurance
coverage. Contributions to SCRS for the years ending June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were $3,220,311,
$3,720,731 and $4,151,122, respectively equal to the actuarially required contributions for each year.
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PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Funding Policy (continued)

Police Officers Retirement System (SCPORS)

Since July 1, 1988, employees participating in the PORS have been required to contribute 6.5 percent of all
compensation. Effective July 1, 2004, the employer contribution rate became 13.55 percent which, as for
the SCRS, included a 3.25 percent surcharge. Contributions to SCPORS for the years ending June 30,
2005, 2006 and 2007 were $3,135,162, $3,246,568, and $3,475,682, respectively, equal to the actuarially
required contribution rates for each year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures.” This statement more closely aligns the
financial reporting requirements for pensions with those for other postemployment benefits. The
requirements of the new statement become effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2007.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Federal Grants

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various federal agencies. The grant
programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to insure
compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement that may
arise as the result of audits of grant funds is not believed by City officials to be material.

Litigation

The City is a party to legal proceedings that normally occur in government operations. The City is involved
in unresolved legal actions concerning the procurement of construction contracts and other matters, The
City believes its positions are meritorious and is vigorously defending its positions. In the event of an
unfavorable outcome, the City’s range of potential liability is $780,097 to $8,766,485. The City’s estimate
of ultimate loss has been recorded as a liability in the Risk Management Fund financial statements (Note II.
D).

Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (“CMRTA”)

In 2002, the City entered into a conveyance agreement with South Carolina Electric & Gas Company
(“SCE&G”). The basic premise of this agreement was to convey the operations of the CMRTA from
SCE&G to the direction of the City. The CMRTA was established in October 2002, and is committed to
providing safe, dependable and accessible public transit service to the heart of the Midlands, including
Columbia, Cayce, West Columbia, Forest Acres, Arcadia Lakes, Springdale and the St. Andrews area.
Under the conveyance agreement SCE&G agreed to transfer funds of $15,000,000 and $17,290,000, both
under installment agreements, to the City. The City then entered into an agreement with CMRTA to
transfer these SCE&G payments to the CMRTA. In addition to transferring the SCE&G funds to the
CMRTA, the City also made the following commitments:

1. The City agreed to pay CMRTA the amount of $1,000,000 annually on each October 1 beginning
October 1, 2003; provided, however, that if a dedicated tax or dedicated source of revenue is
approved to provide funds for the operation of transit services, the City’s obligation under this
Section shall cease on the first anniversary of the approval of the dedicated source of revenue. As
of June 30, 2007, this has not occurred.

2. The City agreed to transfer to the CMRTA on the effective date all amounts budgeted by the City
but unspent for all expenses related to the trolley service for fiscal year 2002/2003. Thereafter, the
City shall pay the CMRTA the amount of $90,000 as verified by the current budget for the fiscal
year 2002/2003 annually for seven years on each October 1 beginning October 1, 2003; however,
that if a dedicated tax or dedicated source of revenue is approved to provide funds for the
operation of transit services, the City’s obligation under this Section shall cease on the first
anniversary of the approval of the dedicated source of revenue. As of June 30, 2007, this has not
occurred.
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V. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

VI.

Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (“CMRTA”) (Continued)

Also in connection with the conveyance of the CMRTA to the City, the City will receive approximately 5.8
acres of land associated with an old bus barn held by SCE&G. The City estimates that the value of the
property is approximately $4 million, although an appraisal has not been performed. The City plans to sell
this land to developers once it is turned over.

Agreement with Columbia Housing Authovity (“CHA”)

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the City entered into an agreement to provide approximately $4.7
million to the CHA to construct infrastructure assets for the Rosewood Hills Subdivision. These funds are
paid out of the City’s Water and Sewer and Storm Water Funds. As of June 30, 2007, the City had spent
approximately $1.8 million under the agreement. At the end of the project, the infrastructure assets will be
donated back to the City for continuing maintenance.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the City performed a physical inventory of its capital assets in all of
its funds. In addition, during the year ended June 30, 2007, the City identified certain amounts that were
recorded as due from Federal government at June 30, 2006, that should not have been recorded as
receivables. As a result, the following adjustments are required to correct net assets at June 30, 2006:

Restatement
Net Assets Accounts Restated Net Assets
June 30, 2006 Capital Assets Receivable June 30, 2006

Governmental Activities $ 173,193,789 § 24,451,253 § (3,481,929) $ 194,163,113
Business-type activities 508,696,080 (4,584,176) - 504,111,904
General Fund 23,520,462 - (324,770) 23,195,692
County Services Fund 1,268,557 - (222,209) 1,046,348
Non-major governmental funds 49,037,820 - (3,086,159) 45,951,661
Component Units 16,134,675 (5,093,029) - 11,041,646
Water and sewer fund 427,477,204 (8,665,270) - 418,811,934
Parking fund 23,745,299 4367,185 - 28,112,484
Non-major proprietary funds 61,454,787 (286,091) - 61,168,696
Internal service funds 6,779,976 (19,315) - 6,760,661

VIL

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to June 30, 2007 the City entered into the following transactions:

On September 19, 2007, the City passed an ordinance for the issuance and sale of City of Columbia, South
Carolina, Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds ($105,000,000), General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2007A ($9,085,000), and General Obligation Bonds, Taxable Series 2007B ($3,050,000). Two
forward starting swap agreements were also approved ($13,070,000 and $5,185,000).

On October 17, 2007, the City committed up to $4.5 million to the Allen Benedict Court Hope VI Project
for infrastructure cost.

On October 17, 2007, the City approved a project for the construction of a 2.0 MG elevated water storage
tank on Rimer Pond Road in the amount of $4,291,000.

On October 17, 2007, the City approved a construction project for the Lincoln Street Parking Garage in the
amount of $10,990,386.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

On February 20, 2008, the City approved Project North Main Street Streetscape in the amount of
$12,973,447.

On March 5, 2008, the City approved Project Main Street Beautification Phase II in the amount of
$4,681,256.

The Tax Increment District Capital Projects Fund accounts for the construction and development of parks
and infrastructure, within the Congaree Vista Redevelopment District, and is funded by tax increment
district property tax revenues. This fund is the result of an agreement made in 1999 between the City and
Richland County. During 2007, a dispute arose between the City and the Council regarding the agreement.

On November 12, 2007, the dispute was resolved and the parties entered into an agreement whereby the
County agreed to continue to escrow all ad valorem tax revenues received in the Vista TIF District through
the effective date of December 31, 2007, and thereafter, direct that all funds being held in escrow
(including interest earnings) pursuant to the 2007 agreement by the Richland County Treasurer be released
to the City. In addition, the County released the City from any and all lability for any claims arising from
the original agreement. In January of 2008 the original TIF agreement was ended and the City paid off the
TIF bonds balance of $5.11 million. Thus, the Tax Increment District Capital Projects Fund ceased to
exist, and the remaining fund balance was transferred to the general capital projects fund.

On December 4, 2008, the City of Columbia’s Metro Wastewater Treatment Plant was served with a search
warrant obtained by the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control and the United
States Environmental Protection Agency. Computer and hard copies of various records were seized by
these agencies. The search warrant alleged that the City had, since 2005, discharged untreated wastewater
into the Congaree River and that certain required testing had been manipulated to conceal the discharges.
The allegations are currently being investigated and no criminal charges have been filed at this time. The
matter is being investigated by management and legal counsel. It is too early in the investigation to
determine whether or not the City will prevail, and the financial impact, if any, is not determinable.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 49, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations,” which provides guidance on how to calculate and report the costs and obligations with
pollution cleanup efforts. The requirements of the new statement become effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2007.

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

To hedge exposure to rising interest rates the Columbia Parking Facilities Corporation (*The Corporation™)
entered into two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements related to $13,070,000 and $5,185,000 of
Series 2007 South Carolina Jobs-Economic Development Authority Bonds. The agreements were entered
into in February 2007 and were effective on February 23, 2007 and March 1, 2007, respectively. The
purpose of the swaps was to effectively change the variable rate bonds to fixed rate bonds.

The Series 2007 bonds and related swap agreements mature on March 1, 2017. The notional amounts of
the swaps equal the principal amounts of the associated bonds and decrease simultaneously with the
reduction in the principal amounts of the associated bonds. As of June 30, 2007, the notional amounts were
$13,070,000 and $5,185,000.’
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INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In order to mitigate credit risks, the Corporation diversified its exposure by entering into the swaps with
high quality counterparties. The objective of the swaps is to enhance savings to the Corporation from the
issuance of the Bonds and to offset changes on tax-exempt variable interest rates applicable to those bonds.
The swaps provides for payment by the Corporation of a 5.085% and 6.815% fixed rate on a notional
amount, having an amortization schedule equal to that of the bonds. In return, the respective swaps
counterparties will pay the Corporation a variable rate equal to 95% of the one-month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) on such notional amount. At June 30, 2007, 95% of LIBOR was 5.054%. As a
result of these hedge transactions, the payments received by the Corporation from the counterparties
pursuant to the swaps are expected to approximate the interest payment on the bonds, which are based on
an auction rate, resulting in net fixed rate debt service. Because the variable interest rates paid by the
Corporation and paid to the Corporation are based on different indexes, the Corporation is exposed to basis
risk. There can be no assurance that the actual payments received by the City from the counterparties will
match the actual interest payments.

The obligation of the Corporation to make regularly scheduled payments under the swaps ranks on a parity
basis with the Corporation’s obligation to make debt service payments on its outstanding bonds. Under
certain circumstances, the swaps are subject to termination prior to their respective scheduled expiration
dates and prior to the maturity of the bonds to which each such swaps relates, in which event the
Corporation may be obligated to make a substantial payment to the respective counterparty (“Termination
Payments”). The obligation of the Corporation to make any termination payments under the swaps is
junior and subordinate to the obligation to make debt service payments on bonds. Under the swaps, the
counterparties have certain limited rights to consent to modifications to the master resolution, which
modifications would affect the rights of the counterparties under the swaps. To minimize credit or
repayment risk, the swap agreements contain varying collateral agreements with the counterparties. The
swaps require collateralization of the fair value of the swaps should the counterparty’s credit rating fall
below the applicable thresholds. During fiscal year 2007, the Corporation made no variable bond interest
payments and fixed rate payments on the swap. The Corporation also did not receive variable swap
payments.  The mark to market value of the swaps was $114,904 and $64,674 at June 30, 2007,
respectively.

The Corporation paid a fee of $47,500 when the swaps were initiated.

Debt service payments on the Bonds are disclosed in Note III. J.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City that accounts for all financial
resources not accounted for in other funds.



CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES

General property taxes

License and permits

Intergovernmental revenue

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Revenues from use of money and property
Other revenues

Cost recovery fees

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Judicial
Finance department
Community development
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Public services
General services
Community promotion
Nondepartmental

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency ) of revenues ovei

(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance-beginning, as restated

Fund balance- ending

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
$ 38,499,400 $ 41,223,854 $ 41,223,854 $ 0
26,553,216 31,162,106 31,162,106 0
8,710,820 9,879,961 9,879,961 0
6,492,877 6,858,711 6,859,711 0
981,000 786,187 786,187 0
847,500 833,745 833,745 0
241,300 557,992 557,992 4
3,200,000 3,200,000 3,200,000 0
85,526,113 94,503,556 94,503,556 0
5,672,620 4,932,163 4,932,163 0
2,092,715 1,874,399 1,874,399 0
1,467,775 1,747,050 1,747,050 0
3,561,691 3,249,126 3,249,126 0
45,477,662 42,204,028 42,204,028 0
9,364,721 8,943,182 8,943,182 0
17,634,403 17,068,283 17,068,283 0
3,665,146 3,221,626 3,221,626 0
200,000 542,106 542,106 0
1,913,582 1,779,233 1,994,233 {215,000}
91,050,315 85,561,196 85,776,196 {215,000}
{5,524,202) 8,942,360 8,727,360 (215,000)
9,325,000 6,744,189 6,744,189 0
(3,800,798) (15,157,142) (14,942,142) 215,000
5,524,202 (8,412,953) (8,197,953) 215,000
0 529,407 529,407 0
23,195,692 23,195,692 23,195,692 0
$ 23,195,692 § 23,725,099 $ 23,725,099 $ 0
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



REVENUES

General property taxes
General property taxes - current
General property taxes - prior

Real estate tax - Lexington County - current

Personal tax - Lexington County - current
Personal tax - Lexington County - prior
Homestead exemption

Payment in lieu of taxes

Merchants inventory tax

Total general property taxes

License and permits
Business license
Business license - Telecommunications
Business license insurance
Delinquent business license
Delinquent business license - prior year
Business license franchise fees
Franchise fees - vendors
Audited license fees
Arts and craft permits
New business list sales
Business license ordinance sales
Business license contractor's decals
Group event license/permit
Building permits
Electrical permits
Plumbing permits
Gas permits
Sign permits
Heat permits
Zoning permits
Dog license
Chauffeur license
Other miscellaneous - business
Other miscellaneous - non business

Total license and permits

Intergovernmental revenues
State shared
Miscellaneous tax collected
SC Motor fuel tax reimbursement
Highway signal maintenance
Donated funds recreation
Fire Rebate - Richland County

Total intergovernmental revenues

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007
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2007
Original Final

Budget Budget Actual Variance
33,872,500 § 36,184,042 $ 36,184,042 0
1,400,000 1,008,169 1,008,169 [
1,500,000 2,201,888 2,201,888 [
25,000 12,760 12,760 0
9,000 3,575 3,575 0
950,000 1,043,458 1,043,458 0
40,000 55,498 55,498 0
702,900 714,464 714,464 0
38,499,400 41,223,854 41,223,854 0
7,500,000 7,866,311 7,866,311 0
1,750,000 1,404,498 1,404,498 0
9,700,000 10,446,086 10,446,086 0
800,000 1,103,377 1,103,377 0
95,000 89,813 89,813 0
4,900,000 8,025,753 8,025,753 0
600 300 300 0
40,000 57,477 57,177 0
1,250 1,830 1,830 0
850 1,008 1,008 0
50 0 0 0
23,000 22,855 22,855 0
7,000 5,040 5,040 0
1,200,000 1,448,698 1,448,698 [}
140,000 166,947 166,947 0
66,000 90,468 90,468 0
16,000 12,811 12,811 0
13,000 29,446 29,446 0
110,000 145,025 145,025 0
65,000 60,317 60,317 0
46,000 35,968 35,968 0
4,466 4,475 4,475 [
75,000 141,823 141,823 0
0 2,080 2,080 0
26,553,216 31,162,106 31,162,106 0
3,130,000 3,435,403 3,435,403 0
10,000 0 0 0
0 7,715 7,715 0
330,820 320,930 320,930 0
0 1,055 1,055 0
5,240,000 6,114,858 6,114,858 0
8,710,820 9,879,961 9,879,961 0

{Continued)



Charges for services
Trade publication renewals
Return check service charges
Regulation code books
Duplicated business licenses
Project work
Compost sales
Recycling sales
Solid waste disposal fees
Roll cart replacement fees

Commercial bulk container collection
Commercial bulk container disposal

Commercial roll cart disposal

Eleemosynary bulk container coliection
Eleemosynary bulk container disposal

Eleemosynary roli cart collection
Eleemosynary roll cart disposal

Eleemosynary homeowner collection
Eleemosynary homeowner disposal

Six night service disposal

Tree and forestry lot clearance fees

Demolition charges

Animal shelter fees

Employee animal clinic fees
Hydrants fees

Police accident report copies
Reimbursement police services
False fire alarm charges

Maxcy Gregg admissions fees

Drew Park admissions fees
Greenview pool admissions fees
Recreation athletics

Tennis court fees

Golf Center

Other parks/recreation fees

Total charges for services

{Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
$ 8,000 $ 8,302 § 8,302 $ 0
2,000 1,878 1,878 0
1,000 340 340 0
300 385 385 0
5,000 5,930 5,930 0
5,000 9,371 9,371 0
85,000 82,852 82,852 0
18,000 15,780 15,780 0
0 3,041 3,041 0
2,000 0 0 0
400,000 377,175 377,475 0
59,000 47,369 47,369 0
46,000 45,054 45,054 0
50,000 44,204 44,204 0
35,000 31,609 31,609 0
10,000 7,833 7,833 0
10,000 8,800 8,800 0
2,500 2,181 2,181 0
23,000 18,792 18,792 0
0 45,520 45,520 0
60,000 13,383 13,383 0
285,000 275,019 275,019 0
2,100 766 766 0
4,800,000 5,168,852 5,168,852 0
16,082 27,442 27,442 0
0 1,960 1,960 0
10,000 8,200 8,200 0
23,000 22,958 22,958 0
302,380 391,633 391,633 0
8,000 16,278 16,278 0
53,500 43,928 43,928 0
42,000 42,481 42,481 [}
22,640 13,199 13,199 0
106,375 77,196 77,196 0
6,492,877 6,859,711 6,859,711 0
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Fines and forfeitures
Criminal court fines
Traffic court fines
Bond forfeiture from county courts
Late Fees
Uniform ordinance inspections
Uniform ordinance animal control
Uniform ordinance business license
Uniform ordinance fire department
Fines - miscellaneous

Total fines and forfeitures

Revenues from use of money and property
Interest on investments general
interest gain/loss cost /market
Interest - Lexington County tax collections
Rents and Royaities

Total revenues from use of money and property

Other revenues
Misceilaneous revenue
Reimbursement property damage
Collection agency
Police revolvers
Community Development Week
Auction sales
Donations

Total other revenues

Cost recovery fees

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers from other funds

Water and sewer operating
Parking operating
Accommodations/Hospitality
Unappropriated surplus transfer
Total transfers from other funds

Total revenues and other financing sources

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
$ 193,194 § 144,896 $ 144,896 0
757,306 583,854 583,854 1}
15,000 0 0 0
0 672 672 0
0 14,343 14,343 0
0 15,998 15,998 0
0 23,451 23,451 0
0 2,973 2,973 [
15,500 0 0 0
981,000 786,187 786,187 0
700,000 628,497 628,497 0
100,000 194,063 194,063 0
5,000 8,685 8,685 0
42,500 2,500 2,500 0
847,500 833,745 833,745 0
111,300 386,583 386,583 0
5,000 4,517 4,517 0
5,000 4,180 4,180 0
5,000 0 0 0
0 21,845 21,845 0
115,000 140,593 140,593 4}
0 274 274 0
241,300 557,992 557,992 0
3,200,000 3,200,000 3,200,000 0
4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000 0
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0
825,000 1,244,189 1,244,189 0
3,000,000 0 0 0
9,325,000 6,744,189 6,744,189 0
$ 94,851,113 $ 101,247,745 § 101,247,745 0
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EXPENDITURES

General Government

Legislative
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges

Total Legislative

Executive/Administration
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges

Capital outlay
Special events

Total Executive/Administration

Human Resources and Training
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay

Total Human Resources and Training

Legal
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capitat outlay

Total Legal

Public information
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay

Total public information

Total General Government

Judicial

Municipal Court
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay

Total Municipal Court
Total Judicial

Finance Department:
Administration
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Special events

Total Administration

GENERAL FUND

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

70

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
262,161 § 264,026 264,026 0
22,250 15,269 15,269 0
148,221 122,522 122,522 0
432,632 401,817 401,817 0
2,017,740 1,905,300 1,805,300 0
144,509 58,560 58,560 Y
480,281 362,712 362,712 0
48,000 28,064 28,064 0
0 36 36 0
2,690,530 2,354,674 2,354,674 0
648,151 654,026 654,026 0
50,362 30,782 30,782 [
76,494 53,833 53,833 ]
2,300 2,307 2,307 0
777,307 740,948 740,848 0
804,251 640,534 640,534 0
60,625 47,376 47,376 0
482,240 346,231 346,231 0
27,000 48,675 48,675 0
1,374,116 1,082,816 1,082,816 0
242,855 238,346 238,348 0
68,980 68,483 68,483 0
86,200 40,271 40,271 0
0 4,808 4,808 0
398,035 351,908 351,908 0
5,672,620 4,932,163 4,832,163 0
1,854,824 1,741,169 1,741,168 0
74,893 51,035 51,035 4
142,998 77.865 77,865 0
20,000 4,330 4,330 0
2,082,715 1,874,399 1,874,398 [
2,092,715 1,874,399 1,874,399 0
256,814 235,180 235,180 0
3,770 4,764 4,764 0
2,985 137,521 137,521 0
0 55 55 1]
263,569 377,520 377,520 0
{Continued)



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Finat
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Accounting

Personnel services $ 494,858 $ 684,305 § 684,305 $ 0

Supplies 19,850 37,507 37,507 0

Other services and charges 44,100 11,573 11,573 0
Total Accounting 558,808 733,385 733,385 0
Business License

Personnel services 568,799 563,305 563,305 1]

Supplies 24,288 22,107 22,107 0

Other services and charges 22,311 24,007 24,007 0

Capital outlay 30,000 26,726 26,726 0
Total Business License 645,388 636,145 636,145 0
Total Finance Department 1,467,775 1,747,050 1,747,050 0
Development Services

Personnel services 2,569,301 2,355,333 2,355,333 0

Supplies 158,600 140,806 140,806 0

Other services and charges 97,700 100,993 100,993 0

Capital outlay 52,800 52,382 52,382 4
Total Development Services 2,918,401 2,649,514 2,649,514 0
Planning

Personnel services 465,347 449,184 449,184 [1}

Supplies 38,550 27,299 27,299 [}

Other services and charges 139,393 123,129 423,123 [
Total Planning 643,290 599,612 599,612 0
Total Development Services and Planning 3,561,691 3,249,126 3,249,126 0
Public Safety
Police Department
Administrative Service

Personnel services 2,082,072 1,837,396 1,837,396 [

Supplies 663,327 1,122,356 1,122,356 0

Other services and charges 952,240 779,473 779,473 0

. Capital outlay 406,122 0 [ 0

Total Administrative Service 4,103,761 3,739,225 3,738,225 0
Operations

Personnel services 13,286,062 13,006,494 13,006,494 0

Supplies 779,377 873,873 873,873 0

Other services and charges 848,148 745,020 745,020 0

Capital outlay 583,127 128,964 128,964 0
Total Operations 15,506,714 14,754,351 14,754,351 0
Special Services

Personnel services 4,434,809 4,837,902 4,837,902 0

Supplies 120,716 97,188 97,188 0

Other services and charges 53,025 71,158 71,158 0

Capital outlay 103,232 82,526 82,526 0
Total Special Services 4,711,782 5,088,774 5,088,774 0
Total Police Department 24,322,257 23,582,350 23,582,350 0

{Continued)
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Fire Department - City
Administration

Personnel services $ 636,503 $ 446,051 § 446,051 $ 0

Supplies 24,666 16,888 16,888 1]

Other services and charges 30,912 19,972 19,972 1]

Capital outlay 14,100 1,374 1,374 ]
Total Fire Department - City 706,181 484,285 484,285 1]
Fire Prevention

Personnel services 770,312 714,827 714,827 0

Supplies 44,240 44,674 44,674 4]

Other services and charges 50,992 53,231 53,231 []

Capital outlay 75,900 65,708 65,708 [4]
Total Fire Prevention 941,444 8§78,440 878,440 0
Fire Suppression

Personnel services 11,914,541 11,446,995 11,446,995 o

Supplies 552116 835,647 835,647 0

Other services and charges 1,350,429 1,297,996 1,297,996 0

Capital outlay 1,770,275 197,969 197,969 0
Total Fire Suppression 15,587,361 13,778,607 13,778,607 0
Fire Logistics

Personnel services 251,821 279,374 279,374 0

Supplizs 114,709 60,179 60,178 [

Other services and charges 82,218 71,258 71,258 0

Capital outlay 21,900 12,002 12,002 0
Total Fire Logistics 470,648 422,813 422,813
Total Fire Department 17,705,634 15,564,145 15,564,145 [
Homeland Security

Personnel services 1,268,437 1,188,958 1,188,958 o

Supplies 100,698 41,027 41,027 Q

Other services and charges 67,108 71,118 71,118 0

Capital outiay 20,576 40,939 40,839 0
Total Homeland Security 1,456,819 1,342,042 1,342,042 0
911 Emergency and 311 Center

Personnel services 1,827,055 1,590,236 1,590,236 0

Supplies 33,125 32,148 32,148 0

Other services and charges 129,272 391,046 91,046 [}

Capital outlay 3,500 2,061 2,061 0
Total 911 Emergency and 311 Center 1,892,952 1,715,491 1,715,491 0
Total Public Safety 45,477,662 42,204,028 42,204,028 0

(Continued)
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Parks and Recreation
Recreation

Personnel services $ 4,832,963 $ 4,839,732 § 4,839,732 0

Supplies 285,178 281,292 281,292 0

Other services and charges 1,148,609 1,431,826 1,431,826 0

Community promotions 358,000 0 [} o

Capital outlay 61,160 70,681 70,681 0
Total Recreation 6,685,910 6,623,531 6,623,531 0
Parks

Personnel services 1,935,607 1,625,615 1,625,615 0

Supplies 154,729 122,608 122,608 0

Other services and charges 266,974 159,789 159,789 o

Capital outlay 55,960 90,510 90,510 0
Total Parks 2,413,270 1,998,523 1,998,523 0
Swimming Pools

Personnel services 96,557 158,562 158,562 0

Supplies 4,487 4,495 4,495 L]

Other services and charges 5,000 1,240 1,240 [

Capital outlay 6,300 5615 5615 [
Total Swimming Pools 112,344 169,912 169,912 0
Tennis Courts

Personnef services 142,392 145,217 145,217 0

Supplies 3.425 3,962 3,962 0

Other services and charges 7,380 2,037 2,037 0
Total Tennis Courts 153,197 151,216 151,216 0
Total Parks and Recreation 9,364,721 8,843,182 8,943,182 0
Public Services
Administration

Personnel services 342,564 255,977 255,977 ]

Supplies 12,870 10,892 10,892 0

Other services and charges 110,067 110,505 110,505 ]

Capital outlay 8,000 7,570 7,570 ¢
Total Administration 473,501 384,944 384,944 [
Solid Waste

Personnel services 5,003,614 4,772,094 4,772,094 0

Supplies 1,082,882 991,466 991,466 0

Other services and charges 3,485,412 3,504,736 3,504,736 o

Capital outlay 30,000 125,052 125,052 0
Total Sofid Waste 9,601,808 9,393,348 9,393,348 0
Streets and Storm Drains

Personnel services 1,116,300 975,458 975,458 g

Supplies 178,961 215,622 215,622 0

Other services and charges 132,394 168,888 168,888 0
Total Street and Storm Drains 1,427,655 1,359,968 1,359,968 0
Animal Controt:

Personnel services 829,267 781,494 781,494 0

Supplies 123,639 123,314 123,314 0

Other services and charges 137,595 275,631 275,631 0
Total Animal Control 1,090,501 1,180,439 1,180,438 0

{Continued)
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Trees and Forestry

Personnel services $ 1,531,409 $ 1,232,191 § 1,232,191 $ 1]

Supplies 241,527 188,866 188,866 0

Other services and charges 352,530 266,376 266,376 0

Capital outlay 28,000 6,296 6,296 [
Total Trees and Forestry 2,153,466 1,693,729 1,693,729 0
Traffic Engineering

Personnel services 1,293,124 1,166,129 1,166,129 0

Supplies 182,479 167,651 167,651 o

Other services and charges 1,228,790 1,693,872 1,693,872 [}

Capital outlay 182,979 28,203 28,203 0
Total Traffic Engineering 2,887,372 3,055,855 3,055,855 [
Total Public Services 17,634,403 17,068,283 17,068,283 0
Information Technology

Personnel services 4,330,744 995,963 995,963 0

Supplies 39,680 70,445 70,445 0

Other services and charges 552,404 492,861 492,861 [

Capital outlay 553,658 462,286 462,286 0
Total Information Technology 2,476,483 2,021,555 2,021,555 0
Public Buildings

Personnel services 230,025 228,416 228,416 0

Supplies 56,995 48,778 49,778 0

Other services and charges 832,643 872,085 872,095 g

Capital outlay €8,000 48,782 48,782 [
Total Public Buildings 1,188,663 1,200,071 1,200,071 0
Total General Services 3,665,146 3,221,626 3,221,626 0
Community Promotion

Donated Funds ¢ 531 531 [

Other services and charges 200,000 90 20 0

Community Promotion 0 541,485 541,485 0
Total Community Promotion 200,000 542,106 542,106 0
Nondepartmental
Contingencies

Personnel services 12,071 0 0 0

Supplies 50,000 ° 0 0

Other services and charges 498,460 230,647 445,647 {215,0090)

Community Promotions [ 59,997 59,897 0
Total Contingencies 560,531 290,644 505,644 {215,000)
General Insurance

Other services and charges 329,500 329,500 328,500 0
Total General Insurance 329,500 329,500 329,500 0
Administration

Other services and charges [ 17,192 17,192 [
Total Administration 0 17,192 17,192 0

{Continued)
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

2007
Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Bank Service Charges:

Other services and charges $ 0 $ 5376 § 5,376 $ [
Total Bank Service Charges 0 5,376 5,376 0
Employee Holiday

Supplies 110,000 36,251 36,251 0

Other services and charges [ 88,029 88,028 0
Total Employee Christmas Baskets 110,000 124,280 124,280 0
Retired Employee Benefits:

Other services and charges 913,551 1,012,241 1,012,241 0
Total Retired Employee Benefits 913,551 1,012,241 1,012,241 0
Total Nondepartmental 1,913,582 1,779,233 1,994,233 (215,000}
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers to Other Funds

Debt service 2,285,798 2,210,798 2,210,798 ]

Transfers Interfund 1,300,000 12,746,344 12,531,344 215,000

Transfers Capital Fund Projects 215,000 200,000 200,000 [
Total Transfers to Other Funds 3,800,798 15,157,142 14,842,142 215,000
Total Expenditures and Other financing Uses  § 94,851,113 §$ 100,718,338 $ 100,718,338 $ 0
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds

Accommodation Tax accounts for State Hotel Accommodations Tax receipts to promote
activities of City organizations.

Tourism Development Convention Center accounts for the Tourism Development Fee
imposed upon the rental of hotels, motels, and other lodging establishments in the City.
This fee is dedicated to the attraction of and improvement of the services provided to
tourists.

Business Improvement District accounts for the Business Improvement District taxes
assessed on the businesses in the downtown area of the City to promote downtown
beautification.

Hospitality Tax accounts for a 2% gross sales tax on prepared food and beverages sold in
establishments to promote activities of City organizations.

Confiscated Drug Program accounts for the disposition of forfeited property and money
seized in Columbia by law enforcement agencies.

Land Acquisition accounts for future land acquisition and development.

Other Programs provides for miscellaneous programs for park improvements and special
events.

Community Development grants and awards accounts for the Community Development
Block Grants and Emergency Shelter Grant.

Justice Department Grants accounts for receipt of Federal and State funds for programs
to improve public safety and law enforcement to the community.

Other Grants accounts for the receipt of Federal and State funds for programs to improve
public safety and law enforcement to the community, various tree-planting projects, and
various public service and planning projects.

Debt Service Funds

Debt Service accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of
interest and principal on the general long-term debt of the City, other than debt service
payments financed by proprietary fund types. Ad valorem taxes, interest earned on the
investments of the Debt Service Fund and interest earned on investments of certain
Capital Projects Funds are used for the payment of principal, interest, and fiscal agent
expenditures on the City's general obligation and revenue bonds.



Capital Project Funds

Tax Increment District accounts for the construction and development of parks and
infrastructure, within the Congaree Vista District funded by tax increment district
property tax revenues.

Street Scaping accounts for capital improvements to street landscaping.

General Obligation Bonds 2002 accounts for funds designated from the General
Obligation Bonds series 2002.

General Capital Projects accounts for various capital improvements in the City.
Miscellaneous Projects accounts for various capital projects funded by the General Fund.
Permanent Trust

Annie Mae Dickson Fund accounts for an endowment for which the investement income
must be used to purchase flowers for the parks.



{panunuoo)

652'199'9 $ 190°59¥'s $  86M'96L'L  § sse'szv'Bz $ pSE'RALT £v0°2ES $ ov6'lle $ 669t $ 6lS€ITL $ Lov'9EE ¢ emzzE'e $ ¥59'69 $ pov'6ve'z $ szeivs'el  §
162'588'Y vrEOZL Y €56 %9t 690°988°8) Z18%) ] [] [N £¥E'sL6 v69'9k1 60V'p52'S {9z9'e) 550'269'C 282'516'8
0 0 o 296'819'c} (562'208°2) (112'op) {eov'zve’l) {5£0°5086) £v8'sie ¥¥9'10L 162'229'8 {zge'zer) $50°268°Z y5P'Y06'8
[} 0 [ ] 0 ] [ 0 0 [ [ ] [ 0
0 0 [ [} 0 [} 0 [} [ [ 0 0 [ [
162'588'y vre'ozL'y £56'v91 L] 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 104'292'5 £85'S62'2 nz'oy £0Y'Zr6'L 652'3b1 [ 05054 ziv'zel 192'821 [ 82ELL
296'511'L 132°pL svz'Len’l 897°1£5'6 91'S1LZ £90°ZES 0p6°LLE S16°0v6 9€2'16T 101'61Z 69v°89 08Z'€L 60¥'25 £$5'598'F
296'5L1L°L IV SYZ'LED'L S00°702'2 80€°652'L 0zz'LEy o 902644 9€Z'L6Z [ [] [) 0 a16'6E8'Y
0 [ 0 202'kLE 1ri'ee 652'c6 0 €892 0 £2€'S1E o [ 0 [
[ 0 [ 59v'6v8 59°6v8 [} 9 0 0 [ [ 0 [} 0
0 0 0 0EY'6E 96 0 z94'02 269'2t 0 ° 0 ] [ 0
0 $ 0 $ o $ 9s1'els § ouz'ez yis't $ 190°pEL $ veS'LLL $ o0s's $ pee'y $ 69’89 $ o08z'tL $ e0v'zs $ sza'sz $
652'199'9 $  190'59p's $  BeV96L')  § Lec'ezv'sz  $  vSE'SOLZ £v0'ZES $ Op6IIE $ 669'LL) $ BIS'TIZL $ 10v'9ee $ 818'7e8's $ vs9'69 $ por'ere'z $ szeiwg'el  §
0 [ [] 6007 0 [ 600'Z [] ] [] ] [] ] [
0 0 [ LE'DL [ [ [ 1e'oL [ [ 0 0 [ 0
[ 0 [ 1zv'y 0 [ 0 S0y €511 098 05S'kE s ys'e [
0 [ 0 z52'15% 76802 ] ° [ 005'0b [} 0 [ 098'sZy [
0 [ ) 158'esp 0 [} 0 [ [ ] ° ° [ 158°e5Y
0 [ [ 685'91E'Z 660°029'% S00'ELZ L€6'608 yS5°eTL [ [ ] ] 0 [
+90's9v's 190'59%'s 0 105'89 0 0 ] 0 o 0 0 105'83 0 0
] [ 0 115'2£00Z 0 0 [} EPE'EY 976'L61°1 9€8'65 we'LIE'E 195 056'241'Z 98£0' 2624
8619614 $ 0 $ 861961 $  vye'ezo’s $ eoT'iLy 8g0'6Le $ 0 $ 05 $ 0 $ 500'9.Z $ 1er'eiv'e $ 515 $ 006'90y $ zev'oe $

fejor spuog spuog siele) siueio siueig a 6 ssinboy Gosg xey wsia 133U30 UOKUBAUGD el

19sia ‘0’9 U0 weunedaq Aunuay 18410 pue Brug i ) d a
[e10adg asnsnp payeasyuon ssauisng WSINO |
BoIAIBS 19R() aNUaAey [2199dg

2002 ‘0t sunr
SANNS TYANIWNUIADD BOrvWNON
AITHS JONVIVE ONINIAWOD
YNITOYYD HLNOS 'VISWNTOD 20 ALD

s8auejeq punj pue
senitqey o

s80UBjEqG PURY 12)01

poAlssaun
bjgepuedxgy
slgepuadxeucy
PoAtasay
3DIAISS JIOP 10} parIasey
390UEIGUINOUS 10} PBAISSEY
seouejeq puny

ssfijgel jejoL

3puny 1Yo o) eng
snusAal pausseQ
sigeied abeuieioy
5}youaq pue S3lIRRS panioay
spqeded syunoday
sapyger)
SAONVIVE ONNY
INV sSNEVIN

S19SSE |B)0y

)un juauoduod wosy eng
sasuadxe pledsig
15318)U1 PaNIdOY
uNoadY
juewienoh ojeyg
juBILIBAOD |elepo.4
soxe) Ajedosg
19U 'sajqrAlada)
SIUBUISIAU]
Auateanbs yses pue ysen
$1388VY

76



2v8'965°29 $ 0LZ'L $  186'b0v'LZ $  £06'9Z5 $  L09'98Z't $ 291’6912 $  590'982°L $  0sZ'9el'sl $

¥6E'e2Z°TY 0Le'L 8SL'yvb'BL (961°005%4) {5v6'0z8) 218'eEr 1i5'Lez'L 115°050°€)

6€2'c08'61 0 LZ'v8L'e (to0'€112) (2r'1e9%2) zig'eer 0z8'26v 880'800°0%

192's 182's 0 ° ] [} 0 °

£86'}L £86') 0 0 0 0 [} 0

162'588'Y 0 0 [ 0 0 [ ]

885'225'20 0 18p'09Z'Z1 £08'719 961919'L [ 169'88L'9 68¥'ZV0'E

€sv'eLZ'0T 0 £22'096'8 660'220'7 1v5'20)'Z [ vss'y £29'580°

8€5'2L1'51 0 115'269's 2v5's20'7 [} 05E'SEL°L [] 619'LE6')

20Z'bLE"L ° 000'000°L [ 000'000'4 0 [ °

92T'6LV'T [ 194'629°s 186't $63'069 0 [ 01¢'286

0EY°6E [ 0 0 ] [ [ [

150012 $ 0 $  188IE9 $ 0 $  £s8'oly $ 0 $  ¥ss'y $  vav'alz $

198'965°29 $ 0L2'L $  iee'voy'iz $  £06'9zs $ 109’982 $  Z9L'69'Z $ 590'982'L $ 0sz'otl'at $

600'7 0 0 0 0 0 [ [

el 0 [ 0 0 0 0 [}

zZer'aLy 0 s02'04 S5p'e ozL's 202’8 86v'0E Lee'sz

252 15% 0 0 [ 0 [ 0 [

L5819y [} 005'2 0 008'2 [ ] [}

€00°6¥0'E 0 piv'zeL 0 000'zy [ »15°069 [

895'€ES'S ° [ [ ] [] [}

926'161'8E 0 SIY'pEL'8L 260'z92 22’119 95v'094°Z 255'652'¢ €v6099'4 1

652'c49'v3 $ o't s Lve'eer's $  8se'z9z $ 600'029 $0 $  009'50EC $ 086152’y $

spung ysnay ejo)L sy30f0sd 5)a9/0s4 [eyiden Z00Z SpUog Buidessjaang s8I0

{eUBLILIBADS) wosya SNodURHSDSIN jesausn uonebigQ |eseuveg juswaiou)
Jofewuon jejo) xey

siasfosq leyded

100Z '0¢ eunp
(G3NNILNOD) SANNI TYANIWNHIAOD HOrVIWNON
133HS 3ONVIVE ONINISWOD
#NITOMYD HLNOS ‘VIBWNTOD 40 ALID

se0uEBlEq puny pue
sanliqen oL

s8oue|eq punj |egog

paAlesasun
B|gepusdxy
spgepuadxauon
pantesay
234A19S JqEP JO) POAIDSEY
S8OUBIGUINILS 40} POAISSON
seduBleq pung

SanIqe)) 0L

SpUNg JoY30 0) eng
anusAG) paLejeq
sjqeled obeurejoy
NYouLy pue SeLeleEs PanIaaY
s)jqeied sjunooay

sanmgery

SHONVIVE QNN

INV s3anavi

$)esse Jejo)

spun Juauodwon twolg ang
sesuadxe predasg
159)83U) periasy
sjunasoy
Wauisaeb ayeyg
justuseaob jesepay
saxe) Apodoig
19U ‘SajqeAlsIeY
SjuUBLNSAAY|
Ausieanba ysea pue ysen
$1388V

77



(panuijuod)

162'588'y $  veozL'y $ £56'991 $  690'088'8L $ (218'9) $ 0 $ 0 $ (asz'eas) 3 €va'sIe $ v6o'ell $ 60¥'psi'e $ {sz9'¢) $ 5502687 $ z8l'sie'e $  Jeak jo pue ‘(syoyap) soourjeq puny
56v°980'Y £VS'1Z6'E 756'91 6850V 1Z (1o8'e12'2) (882'v61} 512'729 {a1z'a1z) 18¥'110'e 6£1621 ZLE'225'9 9686 PEZEBE'T 182°6v0°21 payErsai se seduejeq puny Buiuuibag
0 0 0 000°00¢ 0 ] 0 0 000'00€ 0 0 [ 0 0 swysnipe possed Jopg
56v'980°'y £vs'Lz6'e 256'v91 e8s'ovr'1z (Log'e12'?) {882'v61) 5£2'229 {91z'a12) 18y eEL'6LL zue'zes's 976'86 $EZ'EBE'T 182°6v0'Z) f puny Buy
208'86. 108'864 3 (0z5'y58°2) 686'90L'Z 88L'v61 (522729 {090'5v5) (8€9'560'2) (spo'e9) L180'282 (z25°z01} 13L°€1S (s05"e20°€) sesuejeq punj uj eueyo JoN
861'012'2 0 862'042°2 {oss126'1) 822'085'y 8£0'61E {6sv'vv2’s) {ozs'ssh) {958°'299} ) (000°0052) 0 $22'904 (90Z°11¥'2) (sesn } seainos
Butaueuy seyo 20
[] ] [] £50°925'C 0 ] 0 0 £50°925°C ) ] [ [ ] sasse [mdeo o jesods)p wody spesdsoid
0 4 [ (ya6‘089'cL) (898) 0 (6sp'vrz't) (921'69¢) {606°881'€) [} {000'005'2) 0 (99¢€'992'2) (902'11L'%) (1n0) siajsuesy
861'012'2 0 861'012'2 Les'cal's 960°185'y 8£0'61E [ 959'04Z [ 0 [ 0 LES'TLE'T 000°002°L uj saagsues)
(s35N) S32UNOS ONIONYNIA HIHLO
(o6a'LLY'L) 108°864 (61'012'7) (0z6°za8) {ecz'cia’t) (osz'vz1) v8l'zz9 {ovs’ege) {z8'zeY) {s¥o'es) 260'2EL'T {zis'z01} 9ES°L0Y {66Z299) seumipuadxa (1epun) seno
S8NuoAal Jo (£ousioyap) sseoxy
¥$8'248'9 150'Z99'y 162'012°2 1ZP'69'ET 880120 115'198 009's€8'z ELLPpE'L £18'219°L 200'011 82L'650°5 8z9'058 8ZV' 12y 50Z'V0R'Z sean)ipuadya |01
[) ] [ 206002°) 1e£219 €E5'661 [] 195122 000'S6 §9£°9¢ [ ] ] 181%62 Aepno jended
Aepino jepden
09¢'z8 09¢'28 0 0 [ 0 0 ] [] 0 L] 0 0 0 sefbieyo ke |eos|y
BLE'DLE'L 185'e95 161°048 9n2'62¢'z 0 [ ] 0 ] ° [ 0 £1Z'VIS'E £61'516 Spuoq Uo Jsasei)
691'POY'S 691'v00'y 000°00b'L 000'080'Z 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ° 000'0£Y'L 000'059 spuoq uo Juswied jeddunyg
S31AI8S 1990
1v6'9 1v6'9 0 $66'095°} 0 ] 0 0 cie'zzs's 1819 0 [ ° 0 safiseya a0
0 0 0 98z 98y'L 0 0 ] 0 0 0 PrZ'evo's 0 §22'92¢'t 08 uogoweud funuuoy
L] 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 [1] [} S89AIBS OGN
[ 0 [} 0 ] [ [ [ 0 0 0 0 [ 0 uapeeoe) pue ey
0 [ ] 8s'1LL'8 ISE'306'E 816'19¢ 009'5£8'Z opLiLiL'L [ 19p'se y8y°'L 829'058 059 (IR WatLIaACH |eiBuaD
Waing
SIUNLANIIXI
258'09%'s 858'09Y'S 0 151'986'22 6v8'LyL'T 192'Ley vaL'sv'e £21'856 1£0°s8) 2969y s9.'282'L 950'8pL $99'829'y 906°8E1L'Z sanusasy jejoy
[] ) ] EIBEL6E [} 0 ] 056'89.L S69°Lvl 0 0 zL0'8yL 9576522 ) sanuaAel 18I0
0 ] o SLL'66L'L [ 0 [ 099 9EE'EY $06°Z 866512 o LizZ'9k 196'618 158583}
858'09%'s 859'09¥'s o [ 0 ° 0 ] [ [ 0 [ [ 0 sXE)} JuaLIN)
0 [ o 150'pY [ [ [} [ 0 150'vp 0 0 [ ] Spunj pejessioy
L] 0 L] £95'88 0 L] 0 £95'881 0 L] 0 [} [] [} suonowoly
[ 0 0 LLZ'815°6 0 [} 0 4 0 [} 2921181 [ #05'900'2 ] wewnar0B Hunoy
[ 0 [} 815'619's 0 [ ° 0 0 0 [} 0 ££9'00€ SYE'RIEL welwuieA0S B)ElS
0 $ 0 $ 0 $  ves'zpo'e $ 6veLNLT $ 19%Le¥ $ v8LSK'E  § 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ o $ 0 $ 0 $ JuewIaA06 |2iopas
SINNIAZY
1104 spuog spuog SR0) sjuRI s)ueIf a Bosg ISH weiboid wey 3810 A9 UOHUBAUCD e}l
wmsg ‘0D o410 wswyedag Aunuwoy 18410 puey bnig e d d a
{e1vedg eansne By sseuisng wsunoy|
20188 1gag aNuaAdY |eldeds

L00Z ‘0¢ eUNP Pepu Jes) sy) 10y

SONNI TYANIWNUIAOD HOIVINNON
SIONVIVE ANNA NI SIONVHO ONV 'STUNLIONIIXZ ‘'SANNIATY 40 ANIWILVLS ONINIGHOD
VNITOHEVYI HLNOS VISWNI0D 40 ALD

78



yee'tzZey [TE) $  ssLvvel $ (964'005°L) $ (ope'oza) $ zig'eer $ 116187 $  L5'0s0°ck $  1eakyo pue (suoyep) seouejeq puny
1991565 286°9 §65°L11'0Z (r81's02) 109164 6Ly'BZE ¥59' 9L’y Zr0'8EL'9Y peysel se seouereq punj BujuuBeg
{65t 980°c) 0 {651798¢"c) 0 0 ] {651°98e’e) [} yieunsnipe poltad Jojd
028'LE0'6Y za6's $SL'208'€T (181’500 109'164 sLv'sze £18'085'2 zvo'agh'9l puny
(z9z'82L'c) 882 (z€8'229) (510’562} {ps'zi0') €£€'504 158'941'8 {59v°290'c} sesuejeq punj ul sBueya JoN
S9p'Z0L'E 0 217'ezs’e lise'z60) 6129917 0 [AI753 (1z¢%z9) (sasn) seaunos
Bujoueuy Jayyo €30,
€50'925°2 0 0 [} 0 ] [) o slesse [epdes jo [esodsip woy spesaoid
{es9'vzz'st) [ (z9'cvs's) {15¢e'216) [ 0 [] {1ze'929) (o) siaysuesy
830°19b°'91 0 628°990°S 000'sZL 8H2'99L'T 0 0LV'SLL'E 0 uj sseysuesy
{535N) SFDUNOS ONIDNVNIA ¥IHLO
2eL'o6v's) 882 (¥50'961 ') 99'7) (997'621°E) ece’sol 189'LbE 1 19v'a) saimypuadya (epun) sena
$enuaAal Jo (Aaus)oyep) ssaoxy
800'YE'LE [ SEL'IVO'L 0 £59's42'c 0 6Zy'585 7y'eae semipusde jejo)
106'00Z' [ [] [] [ 0 ] [} Aepno jeyded
Aepno jeyden
09¢€'28 0 0 [ 0 0 [ 0 sebieya Jusbe jeas|4
P80'Y08'E 0 0 0 ° 0 0 [ SpUaq Lo jsauBIY
691'vey'L 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 spuoq uo Jusuried fedioupd
8910185 140G
1p6'295°L [} [ 0 0 0 ° 0 sefaeya souio
982°981°L [] L] 0 [] 0 0 [} uogowosd funwuwogy
orL'6E8'S 0 ovi'sea's 7193 opL'zsz's [ 62Y'585 0 se0jAIBs ollgnd
£56'L 0 £56'GL €56's) [ [} [ [ uonEeIdes pue sysed
891°868'L1 0 0r9'98L's 0 £18'ee 0 0 Zr'esk'e wewiieach jessusgy
wsung
SIUNLIANIIXI
912'¢68'6Z [T 6.9'sva'L 098'v) 182'96 €EE'50} 911’126 €86°10L senueAs. |ejo)
60Z'EEV'y 0 962615 [} 0 voz'e 052005 28251 sanusAas 13410
¥81°192'2 882 122190't 098'y4 1889 690'201 (I 41%4 102'989 1sesa|
858'09¥'s 0 0 0 ] 0 0 ] soxE) JUaLIND
150y 0 0 0 [] 0 0 0 spuny pajeasyuo)
£95'B81 ° 0 ] ° [ [ [} suogolod
$12'825'6 [ 0 [3 0 0 [ 0 wsuiieach Aunogy
Z51'089° [ [ ] 005'2 [} vLo'e [ wauaAc lels
Z86'962'9 [ $  880'¥SZ $ 0 $ 000’2y $0 $ 880712 $ 0 $ iuewsiench |esspagy
S3NNAATY
spung [T 2002 sivsfoud syoslold Jeided 200z spuog Buideag WS
(EluBWILIBAOLY uesyo)q rjon SNOAUBHIDSIN leseusgy uonefiqo jessua) BLTY: T JusWa Lo}

Jofeuwsuo |ejoy

Xey

sioafold |eyded
L00Z ‘0€ sunf papuz Jea oy 1o
(Q3NNLLINOD) SONNI TVANIWNEIAOD HOrVINNON

SIONVTVE ANNS NI STONVHD ONV ‘STANLANIAXT ‘STNNIATY 40 ININZIVLS DONINIBNOD
VYNITONYD HLNOS ‘VISWNTOD 30 ALID

79



NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations of the City (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business, where the intent is for the
cost of providing goods or services to be recovered, in whole or in part, through user
charges; or (b) where the City Council has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. These
funds include:

Hydro-Electric Facilities Fund accounts for hydro electric plant activities.
Storm Water Facilities Fund accounts for storm water utility activities.
Transportation Operating Fund accounts for the operation of the Bus Transfer Station.

Redevelopment Programs Fund accounts for various home rehabilitation and mortgage
lending programs funded from various sources.



ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Mortgage notes receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Real estate held for resale

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings, improvements and utility plant
Machinery and equipment
Less, accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Net capital assets
Mortgage notes receivable, net
Contract receivable
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Compensated absences
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Note payable
Contract payable
Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent libilities:
Note payable
Contract payable
Compensated absences
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets:
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007

Hydro Electric Storm Water

Transportation

Redevelopment

Facilities Facilities Operating Programs
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

$ 923,594 § 6,223,211 § 267,187 §$ 5,389,542 § 12,803,534
910,729 6,136,522 263,465 4,108,770 11,419,486

871,905 0 1] 118,965 990,470

0 0 0 2,835,398 2,835,398

74,816 57,418 2,467 158,023 292,724

0 0 0 336,425 336,425

2,781,044 12,417,151 533,119 12,946,723 28,678,037
326,700 0 0 0 326,700
16,173,300 2,580,944 742,000 0 19,496,244

0 113,627 9,600 0 123,227
(1,536,464) (287,798) (317,827) 0 {2,142,087)

0 3,718,555 0 0 3,718,555

14,963,536 6,125,330 433,773 0 21,522,639

4 0 0 21,348,341 21,348,341

954,654 0 0 0 954,654
15,918,190 6,125,330 433,773 21,348,341 43,825,634

$ 18,699,234 $ 18,542,481 § 966,892 $ 34,295,064 $ 72,503,671
$ [ 1,501,795 § 0 s 814 § 1,502,609
[ 23,020 ] 0 23,020

0 4,796 0 0 4,796

0 407,878 0 1] 407,878

0 0 0 1,366,195 1,366,195

0 0 0 45,000 45,000

870,039 0 0 0 870,039

97,205 0 0 5,191 102,396

967,244 1,937,489 0 1,417,200 4,321,933

0 (] (] 475,000 475,000

1,866,018 4] 0 0 1,866,018

0 19,183 0 0 18,183

1,866,018 19,183 ] 475,000 2,360,201
2,833,262 1,956,672 0 1,892,200 6,682,134
14,963,536 6,125,330 433,773 0 21,522,639
97,205 1] 0 5,191 102,396

805,231 10,460,479 533,119 32,397,673 44,196,502
16,865,972 16,585,809 966,892 32,402,864 65,821,537

$ 18,699,234 $_ 18,542,481 § 966,892 $ 34,295,064 $ 72,503,671
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Materials and supplies
Other services and charges
Heat, light and power
Depreciation
Bad debt expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Other nonoperating expense
Gain (loss) from sale of assets
Interest expense
Intergovernmental expenses

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers:

Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in net assets

Beginning net assets
Prior period adjustment

Ending net assets

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Hydro Electric Storm Water Transportation Redevelopment
Facilities Facilities Operating Programs
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

0 $ 3,982,150 $ 0 $ 0 $ 3,982,150

479,433 0 0 495,150 974,583
479,433 3,982,150 0 495,150 4,956,733

1] 1,251,908 0 0 1,251,908

0 106,432 0 0 106,432

0 145,431 0 83,168 228,599

556,759 0 0 0 556,759
323,466 116,195 30,320 0 469,981

0 0 0 658,188 658,188

880,225 1,619,966 30,320 741,356 3,271,867
(400,792) 2,362,184 (30,320) {246,206) 1,684,866
152,640 383,402 17,082 807,556 1,360,680
13,857 1,440 0 0 15,297

0 0 0 41,423 41,423
(139,907) 0 1] (33,579) (173,486)
0 (1,472,311) 0 0 (1,472,311)
26,590 {1,087,469) 17,082 815,400 {228,397)
(374,202) 1,274,715 (13,238) 569,194 1,456,469

0 1,000,000 0 2,433,367 3,433,367

0 {236,994) 0 0 {236,934)
{374,202) 2,037,724 (13,238) 3,002,561 4,652,842
16,240,174 15,096,076 $90,071 28,128,466 61,454,787
0 (547,988) (9,941) 271,837 {286,092)
15,865,972 $ 16,585,809 $ 966,892 $ 32,402,864 $ 65,821,537
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Due to (from) others

Transfers in

Transfers out

Net cash provided by noncapital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets

Principal paid on bonds and notes

Interest paid on debt

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Decrease in contract receivable, net
Increase in mortgage notes receivabie, net
Interest received

Rent received

Sale of inventory for resale, net

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2006

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2007

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)

Adjustment to reconcile operating income fo
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Accrued vacation

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Hydro Electric Storm Water Transportation Redevelopment Total
Facilities Facilities Operating Programs Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Fund Proprietary Funds
$ 718,205 § 3,982,151 § 0 $ 376,583 §$ 5,076,939
(556,759) (533,738) 0 (135,641) (1,226,138)
0 {1,012,578) 0 0 {1,012,578)
161,446 2,435,835 0 240,942 2,838,223
0 0 0 1,366,195 1,366,195
0 1,000,000 0 2,433,367 3,433,367
0 (236,994) 0 0 {236,994)
0 763,006 0 3,799,562 4,562,568
0 (1,053,627) 0 0 (1,053,627)
(830,583) 0 0 {620,000) (1,450,583}
(169,415) 0 0 (52,400) (221,815)
{999,998) {(1,053,627) 0 (672,400) (2,726,025)
0 (1] 0 (397,654) (397,654)
119,193 291,292 72,959 41,423 524,867
911,364 0 0 0 911,364
0 0 0 (2,908,517) (2,908,517}
177,429 413,200 17,738 767,938 1,376,305
13,857 1,440 0 0 15,297
0 0 0 280,615 280,615
1,221,843 705,932 90,697 (2,216,195) (197,723)
383,291 2,851,146 90,697 1,151,909 4,477,043
540,303 3,372,065 176,490 4,237,633 8,326,491
$ 923,584 § 6,223,211  § 267,187 $ 5,389,542 $ 12,803,534
$ (400,792) $ 2,362,184 § (30,320) $ (246,206) $ 1,684,866
323,466 116,195 30,320 0 469,981
0 ¢ [ 658,188 658,188
238,772 0 1] {118,565) 120,207
0 (27,482) 0 (52,475) (79,957)
0 556 0 0 §56
0 (15,618) 0 0 (15,618)
562,238 73,651 30,320 487,148 1,153,357
$ 161,446 § 2,435,835 § [ 240,942 § 2,838,223
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to
other governments, on a user charge basis. These funds include:

Fleet Management accounts for the maintenance and repair of vehicles.

Support Services accounts for a decentralized governmental and enterprise inventory
system, a central supply facility, procurement functions and the City's general
maintenance functions.

Risk Management accounts for the costs associated with self-funded liability plans for
employee health, worker's compensation, unemployment and tort liability for all City
departments.



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Fleet Support Risk
Management Services Management Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,347,640 $ 223,789 $ 1,144,273 2,715,702
Investments 1,330,731 552,889 12,590,702 14,474,322
Accounts receivable 27,548 1,592 4,250 33,390
Accrued interest receivable 12,451 51473 117,808 135,432
Deposits 0 0 78,745 78,745
Prepaid expenses 0 0 43,087 43,087
Inventory 0 1,218,553 0 1,218,553
Total current assets 2,718,370 2,001,996 13,978,865 18,699,231
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Buildings 903,586 0 0 903,586
Machinery and equipment 8,280,864 632,878 18,428 8,932,170
Less, accumulated depreciation (4,409,614) {261,455) (18,428) (4,689,497)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) 4,774,836 371,423 0 5,146,259
Total assets 7,493,206 $ 2,373,419 $ 13,978,865 23,845,490
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 451,149 $ 478,038 $ 34,259 963,446
Accrued salaries and benefits 35,674 14,871 7,940 58,485
Accrued vacation pay 129,877 72,226 53,166 255,269
Capital lease payable 0 728,758 0 728,758
Due to other funds 0 0 1,478,759 1,478,759
Accrued liabitity for claims 0 0 15,901,813 15,901,813
Total current liabilities 616,700 1,293,893 17,475,937 19,386,530
Non-Current Liabilities:
Capital lease payable 0 1,518,235 0 1,518,235
Total long term liabilities 0 1,518,235 0 1,518,235
Total liabilities 616,700 2,812,128 17,475,937 20,904,765
NET ASSETS
investment in capital assets 4,774,836 371,423 0 5,146,259
Unrestricted 2,101,670 {810,132) (3,497,072) {2,205,534)
Total net assets 6,876,506 {438,709) (3,497,072) 2,940,725
Total liabilities and net assets 7,493,206 $ 2,373,419 $ 13,978,865 23,845,490
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Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Materials and supplies
Contractual services
Heat, light and power
Other charges and services
Claims and premiums
Depreciation
Debt service
Capital outlay

Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

interest income
Loss on saie of asseis

Total non-operating revenues {(expenses)

Loss before transfers

Transfers in

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning
Prior period adjustment

Total net assets - beginning, as restated

Total net assets - ending

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

Fleet Support Risk
Management Services Management Total

9,386,430 $ 631,783 §$ 10,807,081 20,825,294
9,386,430 631,783 10,807,081 20,825,294
1,956,281 793,612 462,204 3,212,097
6,262,527 307,868 12,597 6,582,992
4,660 0 0 4,660
68,180 0 0 68,180
96,566 708,322 1,899,374 2,704,262

0 0 28,169,809 28,169,809
1,088,694 94,091 1,843 1,184,628
0 101,235 0 101,235

0 426,844 0 426,844
9,476,908 2,431,972 30,545,827 42,454,707
(90,478) {1,800,189) {19,738,746) (21,629,413)
91,973 178,823 887,557 1,158,353
{266,344) 0 0 {266,344)
(174,371) 178,823 887,557 892,009
(264,849) (1,621,366) (18,851,189) (20,737,404)
1,457,705 2,459,763 13,000,000 16,917,468
1,192,856 838,397 (5,851,189) (3,819,936)
5,849,680 (1,423,821) 2,354,117 6,779,976
(166,030) 146,715 0 (19,315)

5,683,650 (1,277,106) 2,354,117 6,760,661

6,876,506  §$ (438,709) $ (3,497,072) 2,940,725
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Fleet Support Risk
Management Services Management Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 9,419,033 § 631,786 $ 11,242,951 $ 21,293,770
Payments to suppliers (6,198,731) (229,990) {23,432,351) (29,861,072)
Payments to employees (1,964,631) {798,335) (448,915) (3,211,881)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,255,671 {396,539) (12,638,315) {11,779,183)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Due to (from) others 1] (4,525,534) 1,478,759 (3,046,775)
Transfers in 1,457,705 2,459,763 13,000,000 16,917,468
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital and
related financing activites 1,457,705 (2,065,771) 14,478,759 13,870,693
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (2,029,201) {429,120) 0 (2,458,321)
Principal and interest paid on lease [ {708,240) 0 {709,240}
Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (2,029,201} (1,138,360) 0 (3,167,561)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of investments (1,330,731) (552,889) (2,004,085) (3,887,705)
Interest received 89,604 173,650 868,007 1,131,261
Net cash used by investing activities (1,241,127) (379,239) (1,136,078) (2,756,444)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents {556,952) (3,979,909) 704,366 (3,832,495)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2008 1,904,592 4,203,698 439,907 6,548,197
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2007 $ 1,347,640 $ 223,789 § 1,144,273 $ 2,715,702
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating loss $ (90,478) $ (1,800,189) § (19,738,746) § (21,629,413)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation 1,088,694 94,091 1,843 1,184,628
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 32,603 0 174,483 207,086
inventory 0 1,157,761 0 1,157,761
Prepaid expenses 0 0 {43,087) (43,087)
Accounts payable 233,202 156,518 (48,323) 341,397
Accrued salaries (438) (773) 1,154 (57)
Accrued vacation (7,912) (3.947) 12,132 273
Accrued liability for claims 0 0 6,740,839 6,740,839
Customer deposits 0 0 261,390 261,390
Total adjustments 1,346,149 1,403,650 7,100,431 9,850,230
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 1,255,671 § (396,539) % (12,638,315) $ (11,779,183)
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as a custodial trustee, and
do not involve measurement of results of operations.



Balance Balance

June 30, 2006 Additions Deductions June 30, 2007
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 117,913 $ 60,131 $ 49,881 128,163
Total assets $ 117,913 $ 60,131 $ 49,881 128,163
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 117,913 $ 60,131 $ 49,881 128,163
Total liabilities $ 117,913 $ 60,131 $ 49,881 128,163

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROCLINA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Fines, Assessments, and Surcharges
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Court Fines and Assessments
Fines Collected
Assessments
Surcharges
Total Court Fines and assessments collected

Fines, Surcharges and Assessments Remitted to State Treasurer
DUI/DUS/BUI
Municipal DUl Assessment
Municipal DUI Surcharge
Municipal DUI DPS Pullout
Municipal Drug Surcharge
Municipal Law Enforcement Surcharge
Other Assessments - State Shared
Total Revenue Remitted to State Treasurer

Fines, Surcharges and Assessments Retained by City
Fines
Assessments
Surcharges

Total Revenue Retained by City

Funds Allocated to Victims Service
Carryover funds from prior year
Assessments retained
Surcharges Retained
Expenditures for victims service
Transfers from General Fund

Total unexpended victims rights assistance
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$ 879,568
794,199
343,053

$ 2,016,820

$ 2,808
5,800

2,500

2,600
307,549
700,898

$ 1,022,155

$ 879,568
87,993
27,104

$ 994,665

$ -
87,993
27,104
(158,906)
43,809
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STATISTICAL SECTION



sabuey2 sayjo pue sjun Jusuodwos o} pied pue snusaai jeioads jo Aeppno jejides Quswidojaasp Apunwiwod ‘suojjoword ApuUnwwios ‘jejuswipedap-uou sapn|ouj

‘spunj [ejuswitIBAOB ()0} sapniou)

(2
(1)

6LL'054°091 €L9'05Y'LE £8C'6¥Z 0y 929'422't GEL'656' €TV L0602 LE0'P0T'TY 0S0°LYL‘)L 856'010°2S £00¢
861°G68'syL YLL'008'6 €L1'80Z'8L Zre'i8L's 61€°L58'0 Lps'eer'Le 8/8°GSS°LE ZEV'TST'L 615'995'sy 900¢
S6E'PZeovy 6.¥'S9L'9 6sezel’L 8Lp'99¢'T 800°€90°cl 09%'280'52 6YG'8Ys LE 16GE'26L°L LLL'8LY LY §002Z
669'8.8'0¢1 258'8¢1°L 66£'616°L 62L'197'C eLG'eGL'L £89'699'2Z 9lv'9lL‘8e 2££'220°L SLi'vel'ey 002
089'v.22'0¢L 6£8°696'Y 816'890'8 862°'68Y'C £6L'61E'8 0£L'609'21 685°6EL'LE 6.2°'688 ¥£8°261'0S £002
6SL'€SG L1 0SL‘CE9'Y LEL'2EL'D 6299622 916°26£'9 Z8¢'180°'S1 900°'8L8'ce LIY'¥6L vL0'6€8' LY 2002
822'60L'S6 £62'6EL'E $29'66.L°CL 0£6'0£8°C TE9'0ZE'S 06¥'€59'v1 GG8°CZ0'LE 162'¥SL cLL'LeL've L1002
9¥9'868'¢8 809°028°C yL2'eEs‘9 08L°410°C LOL‘99L’S 18Y'ris'vi S6Y'yseiie 005099 L0v'Le9°02 0006¢C
120°999'02 Z89'69.°C 682958y Z2L8'128°L 086°08.L'Y 0.8'v0S'vL 8y¥° L00°6Z 669°0.9 LeZ'yse'L 6661
ov8'vis'vL £oL‘cLo‘e SLG'COV'Y $ 588'¢00'C ¢ Zve'svs'y ZzT'evo'yy $  Z8T'8le'iZ ¢ 616'2€9 Zis‘Lie'LL  $ 8661
jejo) ERTINETS rejuswipedag S92IAI8G uoneasasy S90IAI9S Ayajeg jusurpedag (feioipng FEETN
1990 ~UON jesoussy pue syied alqgnd aHand aoueul Buipnjoul) |eosty
(z) JUDUUIBAOD)
jeiauen
(payipneun)

Sied ) [eISI4 US| Jse

{1) uonsung Aq sainypuadxy jRIUSLILISACD |RIBURD

YNIMOY¥VD HLNOS ‘VISWNTOD 40 ALID

88



‘punj SapjIoe) 10MeS PUR JSIEM WO} JUSLIDSINGIISS JSOD }9811pUl SBPNJoU]

*fuadoud jo sfes sapnjou)

)
(¢)

‘puny asudiasjue Bupped sy o3 pebpsid siam saul pue sas) Bunped ulepsy (2)
*popnjoxa aie spuny sslidioud WoI) Si9jsuURL] "Spuny jejuawiuioaoh jejoy sepnjouy  (})
8.p'SEE' VYL lzg'ser's zZLrew's y6.L'eSE Sy 0tL'TIS'E 281°98. 90L‘z9)'Le €L2'p89°9Y 00T
262'925°'6T1 8Ly'eor ol 61.°80L°L 667°66Z'6¢ 092°698°L pie'88. £10°LL6'LE S0S'ovS LYy 9002
900°266°801 286'v15'8 p06°650°9 apLvyi6T 8ETPLL L 0£.L°€06 050'999°9Z 95¢£°625'9¢ S00¢
19e'rie'aLl $89°€ZL11 SLS°215°6 TLL'169'vE 1ezzs P51°26L <: Tl K 214 02.°660'9€ 00T
vey'ioce'siy £Y0'6v6°L) £65°02Zv'6 $9.°6£5°9¢ 0SY'ess 6leL88 05/ 18v'sT v0S‘ee29¢ €002
228°196'501 y11°189' 661°16¢'6 0gs‘gLeioe €20°328°} 1¥2°986 6€5'915°22 6.p'0.9'vE 2002
S1L0°ev9'Col y99°6522'y 1S0°LL1°8 299'688°LE Pp9'sopL ZT8°'156 896'Leg'1e 861°svs'ee 1002
88’0106 rAAN g 986°Z10'6 85S'vOV' Ve 9£.L'v56 ovi‘sel’y 6€8°CLY'6l 200°961°LE 0002
ZlL'pT6'e8 296°105°C 2TL156'8 £ve'858'6l 665'69. $Z6°'¥9Z') 19£°185°81 L9Z'y66'62 6661
gzl‘zes'os ¢ LL6'siL'e S62'619'8 ¢ 250'668'0 $ 061758 $ ve9'21Z'L $ GL1°7TeLL § £9L'9vS'8T 8661
jelof () senusnay (g) seoinieg SanuaAay Anadoid pue (2) saunjiepo4 SHWIS saxe} Jesp
FE:11) 1o} 10} sobaeyn jejuawiuiench Aauoy jo pue sauiy pue sasuad|y Apadoug leosiy
pue sjuels e ] 8N woid
SBNUOASY
(paypneun)

sieaj |eosi4 uay jseq
(1) @0unog Aq SoNUBASY [BJUSLULLIDAOS) [BIOUSS)

YNITOYVO HLNOS ‘VISWNNTIO0D 40 ALID

89



-Ajioyny BUISNOK BIGUINIOY WO SOXE) JO N3Y| U JuawAed apnjoul jou saoqg

*2,001 peaoxa Aew Aasj Xe) [e)0} 0) SUONDA||OD XE) j210} JO Oljel 3L} ‘210}aJ1aY | "S|qB]IBAR JOU SI

xe) Jo Jeak Aq suoda|jod xe} Juenbuiep jo umopyealq y Jeah [eosy Ay} Ulylm pajos|joo saxe) Juanbuijep sjussaidal siy)

-pojeadde usaq sey Juslussasse ay) Yoiym uo Apadoad [Bas Uo PIIAI] SOXE] JO %08 AJUO SBpNIIU)

‘uonexsuUR 0} aNp

(v)

(e)
()

b::QO COum:_xUJ JO Seaik aWos U) saxe) bhon_o.:u _wccm‘_w& pue jeal psjos|jod _,u.._m PRIAD] >u_0 ANYL :‘v
£5°') 6v8'009 81°00 rEVOLY'6E yrLLL0‘L 19°L6 069°86¢8¢ 960'8£€'6¢ 1002
€€’} SY0'T8Y VL6 806'L£Z'6E 050'912°L S0'v6 868°120'v¢ 060°.1'9¢ 9002
[4:x4 ¥08'L6L 80°L6 002'265°62 T25'7£9°L TiL6 8.9°656'LZ S6L'C8Y'0¢ $00Z
1 0€Z'0LL z£'86 zL0'LeL'62 065°'v.L5°) Li'es 28v'z791'82 9lL5‘svz'oe 002
9L'¢ 060'S51°L 0496 958'v0L'62 $0£'€99'Y 62°16 155'L10'8Z 965°LLL'0C £002
oLe osi'otL'y 98'G6 oVe'eLY'6T 6L ZPS L $8°06 756'086°L2 CAAWA TN 1 2002
8e'¢ 8EL'5Z0°L 8966 £08'620°62 zEL'BYYL 06°06 120°185°12 200'zve'0g 1002
87'e 0v9'zL6 18'86 SLL'YY9'LT LE2'6¥76 156 8£6'769'0Z 806'096'22 0002
62°¢ §1¢'098 00°66 $Z1'968'G¢C Z60'V6L 16°S6 ££0°201'5T £EV'LIS1'9T 6661
SLe 6vc'196 $ yi‘L6 091°646'VZ $ 1118204 $ £626 £v0'L¥8'ee $ LleL'eso'sz $ 866l
AnoT xel soxej (2) AneyxepfedoL () suonosjion (€} suonosfiod pajos|jon () suonoaljod (1) Ano xey Jed )
{ejo), 03 sexey jyuanbuiag 0} SuoI3vaj0D xej jejog xej saxe} jusingy xej juarng jejol jeosidg

juanbutjeg Buipuesing Xej |eyo) juanbuiag 10 1UB218d
jo opey 0 oney
{paupneun)

sieaj jeosid uay jseT
Suo1IB|jo]) pue sajAsT X Aledold

VNITOYVYI HLNOS ‘VIENNTOD 40 ALID

90



*S81IUN0Y uolbulxaT pue puejyony L0y PaAIadal
sjesysyiom abe||lt pue JusLissasse oy} S| A0qe lep Bununoooe-ucu ey} Joy 20in0s oy “teak xe} Ze6L Ul Pe3ejdiod sem siainioeiNUBW pue
Auodoud [esi jo Juslussasseal apIM-AJUNOD ¥ "9)BISS |BBL JO) Y} 4O 9,9 JOYYS PUe ‘AI0JUBAUI 10} %8 ‘SOIne pue ‘sainixiy pue ‘aanjiuiny

‘Jusiudinba ,s19njoRINUEBLL 104 %GO} JO SBIRI JUBLLSSDSSE POYSI|(R)SS ‘SONES JUSWISSISSE ULIOYUN 8pimale)s 10y sapiacid YoIym oy oy :3J0N
*Alunog puejyoly ui speoajiey pue sepin ‘AJedoag Buunioenuey |[e sapnjou; Apadold jeuosiag )
"SOINE 10} POYSI|e}Sa OS|e SeM SNjBA PBSSasse winwiuyw 19yBly e yno-sseyd
S} WO} SBNUBADL JO SSO| a3 dn aXew o} ajels sy Aq pajersdoldde ase spund *2g6L Ul pajeuile sem xe} Aiojusaul sjueyoaly {€)
‘feadde Japun juswissasse Aiadoad [eal apnjoul Jou ssoQ (z)
‘sejnje}s ajeys Aq Jos sones Jusiussasse uodn paseq anjeA passasse (2o} (1)
§6°G S12°10Lvee'L 291°626°00¥ LT LIV'8LL L 20Z°285°801 £90°0v9'G50'0 095°2€€°262 9002 100z
(AR 0ve'esy 8oL 18v'vpa‘gge £79°160°8Z1°L Ly8'zye‘zolL 169'v9€'026'S ov9°10Z'982 5002 8002
68’ 61£'608'099'S eLr'sLe‘oce 6.8°2L¥'690°L 671'epS'z0L 005°Z6€°16S'Y 0.2°'61¢'822 vooe §002
88°G 69£°09€°165'S 1sv‘09.'gee G€2'188°¢90°L v81°'295°c0} veo'zLy'LeS'y 192'661°622 £002 vooz
20’9 006'8G2°LVS‘S 916'088'cee 66S‘8bP 051 L 965'095'G11 Loc'oic'z6E'y oze‘oze'sLz 2002 €002
(1] 5] £€81'656'8LY'S 00z‘ziz'vee 162'p59'2L1L 056°09%'0Z1 9ZP'r0L 908 Y osz'isl'ele 1002 2002
8.9 8€Z'YY6'v98‘y LZy'ros'eze S0S'9yZ'9kL L' 1e'12) €€2°269'8YL'y 6v9°zEY'802 0002 11114
(4% 6v8'21£'310'S 65.'929'01€ LP6'pSL LED L 69Z°106'80% 806222 L¥0'Y 06v'612'1L02 6661 000z
9L’ 266'€59'062'y z6v'9LZ'vaT v.0°16€'7V6 210'021'96 116'29Z'9ve'e 08%°960°891 8661 6661
91’9 ££9'8/8°80Z'y ¢  009'8ZL'6SZ $ 905890668 $  09.°650'L6 $ lzi‘ols'ele’s ¢ 0v8'890'89L $ 166l 8661
anjep [enjoy anjep [enjoy anjeA an|ep |enjoy (g) anjep onjep |en3oy anjep IEE)N Jeaj
pojewysy oy pojew}s3 possessy pojewsy passossy pajewnsy possassy xej|, feasiy
anjep passassy lelot (y) Ajedoad jeuosiad (z) Apedoud eay
|ejO] jO oljey
(paypneun)

siesp [eIsi4 ua] jseT
(1) Apedoud jo anjep |eMoy pajewunysy pue passassy

YNITOYYI HLNOS ‘VISINNTOD 40 ALID

91



‘L661 JeA Xe} Ul G "ON }21ISI(] [OOY3S Ul PaLINdo0 jsily uonexasuuy  (Z)

*A)unod puejyIy Jo | "ON 39143SIA 100YoS Ul pajenyis Ajuewd i eiquiniod jo Ao eyl (1)

92

v'8zy 0°¢S2 80y 7’662 A1+ 2 1282 y'9L 066 9002
2'96¢ 9'pee 9'0vy 0'6.2 Wka4 0'992 0'8L 9'¢8  §00Z
$'8EY #'99¢ S'Lop 5'682 (Rg K14 1’682 008 026 7002
6'GEY 5192 z'0sy 8’182 8'8hv ¥'082 £9. 026 €002
'Ly 9'65¢ 6'0Zy 1’862 Loy 6'8€C 8'0. 026 2002
1'€6€ 1A L1188 0°0€C 8'2.L¢ [(T¥4 L'S9 026 1002
v'ese 6212 £'6.¢ 8'802 G'€9¢ 0°¢6l S'8L 026 0002
8'19¢ ZL6L 1'89¢ G164 S¥Se 6'c8t 9'08 0°06 6661
2'S6€ 9vie S'€6€ &4%4 6'¢Le 8'Z61 1'Z8 066 8661
£'68¢ #'602 1'28¢ 8'902 §'29¢ 9'98} 6'9L 066 1661

009 oMsia  ebeipiy Doz IoMISIg dbejiN DOL oIS abeltn abejyy  ebejiy  Jeaj

Buiddejieag jooysg Buiddejienp jooyss Buiddejlsag joouss sasoding xej
jejol felol jelof fAuno)

(2) < -oN 3joHysIq Jooyds Z "ON Jo1sIg [ooyds (1) | "ON J0LISIQ jooYyos

uojbuixeT / puejysnRy Ajunoy puejyopy Ayuno9 puejyosiy

(paypneun)

S1B9 A |eoSId Us] jseT

(enjep passassy Jo 000°L$ 19d)
sjuawiuiIdAo Buiddeliaag pue 308l - sejey xe Apadoid

VNITO¥VI HLNOS ‘VIGWNTI0D 40 ALID



%2901 rsivi'or  $ sjejo]
%SV 0 019°9Z.L°L ajejsy |esy d1 seiadoid Aemyied
%8Y°0 L18'vE8°L agueinsuj JUSpIdd3Y @ 9)17 jeluojoH
% 8¥"0 GoG'8Y8‘L asueINSU| uonesodion juapirosdwinupn
%LS0 0G.°.£6°} ajqed SJUBAPY - JUT ISUIBAA DUl ]
%¢S°0 0£8°1L00°C aoueInsy| layeg g iayeg
%L9°0 006'VEE‘T ojelsy jesy $3jel00ossY }aal)g uley
%9.°0 091'996°2 jusunsaAuj isnij euelquinjod doo
%92°1L 056'vZ8‘Y suoiediunwiwey SS9JalIp Jejnbuiy
%SS°C 00S5°9..°6 suopediunwwoy "ouj ‘wo29ja | ynogjjeg
%00°¢ o9L‘sev’'LlL ¢ Aun  seo g 03993 eUljOIED YINOG

uopenjep uoienjep ssauisng jo adA} J19hedxe ]
passassy |ejo] passoassy

jo abejuaaiag

L00Z ‘0€ aunp papug iea)

(paypneun)
siahedAe] jedidung

YNIT0OYVD H1NOS ‘WIGWNT09 40 ALID

93



"LL61 ‘0E 19QWIBAON

uo Buisixe SSeUPa}gapUl PAPUO( Puk (Pajod]|od SoxXe] ay} woly sjaua( [eioads Bulaleoal
eale Ue ui pajeso] sentadoid uo passasse SaIAs] Ssaupalgapul papuog [eiveds (WNpusiaisl
Uans Jo ajep oY) Jo sieak aAl UIY}IMm panss) pue sia)oA oy} Ag parocidde ssaupalgapul
pepuoq :ale uone)wij 8y} woij papnjoxg "anjea Apadoid passesse sy Jo (%8g) Jusaiad ybie
spasoXxa jey} Junowe Aue uj Buipue)sino 3gap |80} sAey awi) Aue Je JouuRd JUn JUBWUIDA0H
je20] e jey) sepiroid UoRddS SIUL "2/61 ‘0 JOGUIDAON BAIJ0BLS BLIEID] UDIYM UOHINIISUOD
2]B)S 8L JO ‘P UOIIDBS ‘Y B101HY papuswe Aq pajoLysal sj somod Buimodioq s, A5 ayy  :9I0N

PP LLLIGL

000°0EV°LL

yhb L09°CE

250°€65° L0V

062°299°0
29.'626'007

0.0°856°22
269°L96°LLE

winpualajal e noyym uibiew yqap jebo

1gep papuog jesausb |eio]
“Jwitp 3gop o3 sjqesyidde jqap jo Junowy
jeroidde ,Si910A JNOYIIM ‘anjeA passasse jo Juaotad (,8) ubig - 3wl 3geq

(210U 99S) ONjeA PISSISSE [BIO]

anjeA passasse /861 AIOJUBAU) SSauUISng
lejol
fQunos uoibuixaT sy AHo
funog puejyory sywyj A0
900z ‘1 Alenuef JO SB anjeA passassy

L00Z ‘0¢ dunf papuzg Jesp

(paupneun)
wiBiep 199 jeba jo uonendwor

YNITO¥VYO HLNOS ‘VIGINNTO0D 40 ALID

94



"puny Bupessdo Bupiied sy wouy predas Bujaq sy yeys puoq Buspunyas uonebijqo jesoush ay} spuasasdad Junowe sy (v)

"'SpUC( 8nNUsAs apN|oUI JOU S0P Junoiy (<)
"$3uUN0d uolbuixaT B puejyory £q paysiuiny se Ausdouid Jo anjea passasse wou- (2)
"euljoied yinog ‘elquinjo jo A9 ayy jo Juswiedaq Buluued Jusind pue SNSUSY Y} JO NeAINg :92INOS (1)
06°6vL SeYv 000°0EV'LL 0 000°0EY°LL 29.°526'00V 812°9L1 1002
JAA 14" 178 4 000°0S¥°LL 000°00V°L 000°0£8°8} i8y'yP3‘g8e y6eLLL 9002
0€LLL 109 000°0L1°02 000°042 00002202 £G0'6EE°LEE vee'LLL G00¢
ZLzsiL 059 000°08£°LZ sie‘eey S1£'c08°'L2 15v°99.2'82¢ p6e'LLL 002
607261 GL'9 000°055°22 029'vb9 0Z9'v6L'€2 916°088°cee vee'LLl £002
S.°99 622 000°6t9°'L $26°'G.18 p26°025'8 00Z°ZLZ'vee 8lz'o0ll 2002
1679 05°C 000°‘'0¥Z's 822°L0L°L gzZiive's LZY'v08°62¢ 812911 Lo0Z
16°89 182 000°0v.L'e zes‘sLe’l TES'BS0°01 652°'9.9°0LE 828021 0002
¥TSL 9v°€ go0‘ovL'e LE8°6EG°L L£8°6.9°0L Zev'alz'vee 828°9¢1 6661
1 247 89°¢ 000°0vS6  $ LP199L'L $ Wwi‘oogll ¢ 0o9‘szL'6se ¢ 008°9Z1 8661
epde) anjep 1924 (v) senuaaay () 10eq (2) anpep (1) uoyejndod Jea)
13d 1990 poassassy o} papuog JoN ospidisiun papuog ssoin) possossy jeasiq
papuog 19N 1gq8g papuog wold sjqefed
JON j0 onjey 19eQ
(poupneun)

siesj [eosid ua] jse
ende) Jod Jg8@ papuog uoijebijgQ |esouas JoN pue anjes passassy O
epde) Jod jgag papuog uonebijqQ [essuss 18N jo oney

VNITOUVD HLNOS ‘VIGWNT0D 40 ALID

95



"spuny jeyuswiuiarob jejoy sepnjouy (g)
"S1S09 J9Lj0 pue aduenss] puoq sspnjoxy (z)

‘papn|oxe udsq aAey spuny asudisius ayj uj papodal spuog uonebijqo jessuss (1)

¥l 6L1°0S52°091 86.012°C 862018 000°00%°L 2002

vl 851°658‘arl ] R A d 81£'898 000°082°L 9002

L0 ¥66°'282°6L1 099°688 099°v62 000°S6S G002

80 Lig'6LL'ELL ShZ'sl6 4 7AlITAS 000°G6S 7002

L0 L06°86Z°G01 678°69. 6Y8'vLL 000°G6S €002

0l £90°858°G6 86£°086 86£°G8¢ 000°G6S ¢00¢

0L 822°60.'s6 86€°0L6 86S‘0LY 000'00S 1002

oL 9v9°868°c8 161°0¥8 L6L°0vY 000°00¥ 0002

0L 120°999°9L 8yy‘89. 8vy‘89¢ 000°00¥ 6661

€L ov8'yyS'y.L $ sS.1'000°c ¢ SZ1°009 ¢ 000°00% $ 8661
soinjipuadx3 (g) saunjipuadxy ELTPN TS (z) 3seusuy (1) redioutig Jea
[BJUSWILLIDAOKL) [RIdUd5) [EJUDULLIBAOD) 1990 [easid

0} 891AI9S 399 jeisuen) jejol
10 oljey jejo
(paypneun)

sSied ) [BoSi4 Us| JseT
(g) seinjipuadxy [RIUSWILIBAOL) |BIBUSL) |B}O |

(1) 3a0q pepuog uonebijqo jessusg
sasmipuadxg 93IAI9S 109 lenNUUY JO oley

¥YNITOHVD HLNOS ‘VIGWNTOD 40 ALID

96



‘spuny aspdisjus ay) ut papodas spuog Buipunyas uoneBijqo jessuab Buipnjoxg (1)

000°010°VES $ 8¢£8°129°2¢€Z Z9l'gog’L0¢
000°019°91LS 8€8°119°2¢€2 Zol‘gce’ese
000°025'vL L08°zeL'Ll 661°18.2°C
000°0S2°0S 816°LEL'pE 44 A3 %1%
000°0v8°LSP 65v°108°081 L¥5‘8€0°692
000°0EY°LL $ - 000°0EV°LL

jejol

Buiddepaag jejo)
1o1nsIq Yied SHUBQIBARY
Aunod puejysiy -sesodund jeisusc)

I "ON 321481 1ooyos Kunos puejysry

:Buiddepiea

elquinjog jo Ao

139341

(1) Buipueising 1gaqg papuog
BuiddejiaAQ pue Jo081i(]

jejoL

Buipueisingo 190q
papuog uonebi|iqo
jessuas) Bujddepsag

(1) Buipueising 192Qq papuog
uonebljqo jeisuag 3004iqg
ejquinjod jo Ao

uonolpsung

¥NITO¥VYO HLNOS ‘VIGWNTOD 40 ALID

2002 ‘0¢ sunf papuz Jeap
(payipneun)
spuog uoneBbijqo jetsusn
198 pepuog Buiddersag pue 39a11(] jo uoljeindiuos

97



0102 ‘0S aunp Buipua Jeak |eosy 10} £02°06Z°LL$ S Jusuaiinbai 891A19S Jqop |enuue 3saybiy jxeu ay L

-uoneloaldep jdeoxe sesusdxe ssueusjujews pue Bupesado jje apnjou) sesuadxs Bunesado euq  (z)

‘syesse |eydes jo sjesodsip uo sasso|/suieB pue ‘sanuaasl }saisjul ‘senusaal Bunesado

apnjoul senuaaai ssoab ‘A|Buipiosoy ,'wa)sAs ayj woiy Buisiie o waysAs ay) jo uonelsdo sy woiy Ay ayy Ag

PeALISp 19319RIBYD JO pUD| JoAsieym Jo s1d190a4 PUE SLIOJUL JBUJ0 [{B PUB ‘YJIM UOIO8UUOD U] PJIS[|0D PUE PBIAs]
8¢ 0} sabieyd pue sjejual ‘saje. ‘s|jo) ‘sady je,, Se L66] JO SoUBUIPIO puoq 8y} Ag paulap ale senusAsl ssoln (i)

i8¢ P8S‘poL LL ¥85°688°L 000°G.Z°6 peo‘ozziey GLL'9EY'ES 60¥°259°L01 002
6.1 1£2°196°LE L£2°TS0°L 000'5L6 YL Zep'gle'ee Ly6'IYre'es 69£'92.26 900¢
0L} £82°280°02 ZITTTLLL 120°596'8 89.°150'vE L62°T18'YY $90°'998°8.L 002
[%: 7 6£8°¢60°02 06S‘vZLLL 6v2'696°8 6.v'The ‘9L LOG'CLS LY 08€'958°LL ¥00¢
1ce 8.7'660°02 0L1°290°LL 89€°¢£0°6 yZo'ves'vy 9c0'vye've 099'8€.L8. £00¢
vE'e ovy'sov0z 0P¥°'686°0 000°'0Z¥'cl LOE'08L LY £V0°L68°6Z Pre'LiotiL 2002
eve £95°1L0v°02 £9G°1L02°L 000°00.°C1 6zL'6ze'6Y 882°GZ.1°6T L10°150'6L 1002
€9'C yro'LaL’oL yro'izi'e 000°0¥9°0} 966°GL0'VY $28'02¢8'L2 0Z8Zre'lL 0002
eLe 80¥°291°GL 80V°2LS'S 000°S65°6 9ZL'961 LY 186°1SEV2 eLL'PSSS9 6661
ST A4 £89°85L°G1L ¢ £89°'c20'0 $ 000°'680°'6 ¢ 959°0LL'YE § Lzo‘evz'ez ¢ 229'¢6¢els  $ 2661
aBeioAon = 1S3493Uj redisuiid 89IAI9E 1080 (z) sosuadxy (1) senuaAay Jes )
10} sjqejieAy Bupesadp SS0I5) jessiy
juswalinbay 9os1A198 1990 2NUBASY }BN
(peupneun)

sies ) |BoSi4 ua] jseT]

SpUOE JBMBS PUR JBJBAA
ebrianon pucg anusasy

YNITO¥VYD HLNOS ‘WISWNTO3 40 ALID

98



‘uoljejdaidap jdsoxe sesuadxe aoususjulew pue Bupesado jje apnjoul sesuadxa Bunesado yoaaq

"1€2°050'$ Jo uibrew e Bujaes)
£1£°80.$ 40} 6002-800T S! @21A1as 3qap 1sayBiy Ixou ay] "pLo‘eSL'P$ JO 931AI9S JGOp WNWIXeL
€ 10§ MO[|e PINOM YOIYM pE‘pZ 9% SI siead jeasy om) Jse ay) Joj sBuluies abeaaae ay|

‘sjasse [endes jo sjesodsip

uo sassoj/suieb pue ‘ssnuaaai ysaeul ‘sanuaaai Bungesado spnjou; SsNUBAAL SSOIE w'ponssi
2q 03 pasodoud uay} spuoq [euoippe |je Joj pue ‘panss usy) aq Aew YojYMm Spuoq [euonippe
lle 10} ‘spuoq |je Jo seak Buipaedons Aue jo syuswiasinbai jediouiid pue ysssvyul paulqLIcd
1saybiy ays Jo (%S¢ 1) wnyued sad aAy ALy} paspuny suo UBL) SS9 JOU B |BYS JUBIUNODIY
alqand payia) e Aq 0} payilied se ‘panssi aq 0} pasodoid aie SpUOY [BUOIHPPE YOIYM Ul Jeak
[easy ayy Bugpasaid AjejeIpowiul sseak [E9S]) OM) B} 10} PUNY BNUBAIY SSOID ayy ojui pred
anuaaai jo ajebaibBbe ayy jo abesaae sy, Jey) saqliosasd 352y sbuluies asurUIPIO puoy syl

(2)

(1)

16t ree'slez iR 000°09p 118°855°G £LY°206°2 vzz'190's 1002
8.°¢ 8€9°080°1 8£9°'0v9 000°CPY Lr2°200° 226'v98°c 6L2'298°9 9002
50’9 9ec0LL 9£€£'662 000°S1¥ AT A pszvie't viv'ere'o 5002
LT €0L°LEL €0.°9LE 000°'s6¢ £61'8¢L'c £02'268°1 966'0€9'S 00z
§9°¢G 192'01L 19.'o¢e 000°08¢ 99t'0p0'y 282'60L°L £0.'G5.°G €002
9y’ 1S¥°51L LSP'SSE 000°09¢ 971°206°¢ 6SY'SSS°L 509°Z9Y'S 2002
S6°G y06°L1LL p06°z.LE 000'sve z16'086°¢ 966'v.LVL 806°L9Y°S L00C
19 61EviL 61£'68¢ 000°'6Z¢ vz6°8ge’e 686'G8e’lL 60S'vTL'y 0002
Ly ProviL vro‘vop 000°0LE 6€5'bg'e oL9'sie’L 6v1°189'p 6661
X4 906°8L2 $ 906'8Ly $ 000°00¢ $ ric'eri'e  § zeLWS'L ¢ 9g0'sga'y  $ 866l
abeianon jejoy 1sato)u] jedisulig a21Alag g3 (z) sesuadx3 (1) sanusasy BB A

10} a|qejieAy Bunesadp SS04D) feosi4

juswaiinbay] a2iAIag G20 ANUBAdY JON
(paupneun)

SIEaA [B0Si4 us ] 3seT

spuog Bupjied
abe1anon puog snusasy

YNITOHYD HLNOS ‘VIGWNT0D 40 ALID

99



*(uonpewIIOHU]
oMJell Joge) "uoissiwwos Ainoag juswiojdwig eujjoien ynog

"auQ 30H3s1d [00YoS AJUNOYH pueiyory

"WSIN Blquinjo) sjuasaidal ‘pieog joljuos pue jebpng
BUI|OIBY YINOSG JO 2RI ‘SBDIAIDG [BD1ISIIRIS PUk Uoieasay JO 95140

"BIQUIN|OD JO

)
()

()

Auo a8y} jo Juswipedaq Buluuejd Jusing pue snsuas syl jo neaing  {(|) :s22inog
%L'G 8G9°cT XA A 8.z'91LL 200¢
%29 090'vZ 80€°2E y6E°LL1 9002
%L'G 685've 018‘0¢ y6e°LL1L G00¢C
%6°9 0.L.'S2 6L¥°62 y6e°LL1 ¥00e
%e Y poc'sz 115'82 P6E°LLL £00¢
%¥'G zeL'se 6.8°L2 8.Z'9L1 rdilira
%L°E £6.'ST GGZ LT 8.Z'9L1 100¢
%0°¢ [\ TANIXA $58°'92 828°9Z1L 000c
%8¢ $99°0Z 19¢g'sZ 8z8'9Z1 6661
%0°¢ 6.0°22 gzy've % 008921 8661
(v)orey  (g)iuswjoauzg  (g) swoouj (1) uonendogd Jesp
juswifojdwaupn jooysg enden 1ad jessiy
(pauipneun)

siesa A |eosid uaj ise
sonsneIs siydesbowsg

YNITOHVO HLNOS ‘VIGWNTOD 40 ALID

100



“1amod puesnoys (000$) ou o3 pajuasaaday ‘dicy ssueinsu; ysodag jesapoa4 {Did4) :eoinos gooz Buluuibag
"0€ dunf Jo se YS elquinjo)) sjussaidal eleq ‘Z00Z-$661Ad BILIBIIA ‘PUOIYDLY JO sueg oAISSaY [elapa (Z)

"Blqunjod jo A119 ay3 Jo uoisialg uondadsuy (1)

98¢£'596'8 6ZV'9LS PPi 8pS°L 866°C1£'88 34 0£0'796°G99°S 007'2£6'€26'2 0£9°1€0CYL'2 2002
9gz'zes’L £€52°6€Z°0L1 1y8 Z80°260°G6 84 LIV'ErL'vIe's 0SZ'895'vEl'e 191°521°089'C 9002
$0.060°L 161°855°G6 [4AY L08'L8e've ¥e 0SZ'9LL LPO'Y 05.°L6L°65€'2 005°826'582'C 5002
652°929'G $69'0c£'cL 8¢€G 51928986 €8 £CLvPRTOS Y 00Z'LE1L'09E'2 £E5°20L'2YL'T 00z
8L9°1vZ'S pEL'8LE'RS A% 966'¢H6'ZE 81 292°8€1°12E'9 000°ZYe'sYZ'T 192°962°LL0'Y £00Z
y29'vee's 9r0'eZL'29 1744 9E0°LLY'9¢ 9§ 21561950y 0S0°2£9°622'C Vi AN IN XA 2002
256°026'% 6€6°L00°9L (3174 £€5°208°66 oy eBV6LL LPL'Y 005°28Y'€20°C £86'9£2'V21°C 1002
291'v6S'y 600°€€6'cL 45 4 9c.'016°CE 144 L1¥°008°'0¥0'y 0ST'PL9'vE0°C 191°921'900°2 0002
000°020°S ZrTiovies 610°L 000'569°VS FAY] 06.°GE0'9pe’e 0ST'YSL'EC9’L 005°L82°ZLL L 6661
000°288'y $ TB8G'€9LlS $ L8 966°158'99 ¢ 6 000°691°LLE’E $ 000°L0S'8PS'L $ 000'899°89.°L ¢ 8661
(z) susodag enjeA spun anjeA SHUnN jelol jeijuspIsay {eloIBWWoD Jesp
jueg jo ‘oN §0 "ON 1easi4

(1) uonsnnsuosn
jenuapisay

(1) uononnsuon

{e1o1sWIio

(anjep jemydy pajewnys3y) onjep, Aledoag

(peupneun)

Slea  |eoSi4 Usj 1587

sysoda() yueg pue uonoNAsUO) ‘anjep Auedoly

YNITOHYD H1NOS ‘VIGWNTI0D 40 ALID

101



965'6.9'8.9 698'688°189 v0L°2LL'SEL
sZv'ceL'oce 906°28G°LLL 9r0‘zLS‘cLL
210°21v'eL Z86°9 022°L
950‘PY5°89¢ 186'V62°'0LS 88c‘c61°2LY
Z.£'180°'G6Y 080°969°80S 989°‘LEV’62S
689°202‘¢S) 96¥°2L6°'G6 99.'706°L8
0 0 0
0 0 0
6vL°€S5 ‘8L 0 0
8¢6°6LECZE CARTANAN S 026925 LY
p8L‘865°'C8L 68L°C6L‘SLL 810°182'961L
8€.1'616°€8 0SP°619°GL 082°209°'6Z
8Z£‘868‘vS Z86°9 0.2°L
gLL'vee'sy 1SE°LIS 16 899°999°0L1
G002 900¢ 2002
{psupneun)

sjosse jau Juswiuiaaob Arewiid jejo
pojouysaupn
Poa}oLI}SaY
1G9p paje|al jo }8uU ‘sjosse jelded uj pojsaAu]
JUBUWIUIBA0S) Ateullid

S}9SSE }au Sal)Aloe adAr-ssauisng jejo|
pojoLIsasun
s198fo4d jelided 10 PoIDLISOY
paileubisop poAlosoy
9DIAISS J(BP 10§ PIIOLIISOY
1G9p paojklad Jo 19U ‘sjasse jeyded uj pe)saAu}
sajlAloe adA)-ssauisng

S}9SSE }oU S3IJIAIIOR |RJUBWIUIBACH [BJo |
pajoLsaluf
pajoLIsay
1qep paje|sd Jo 18U ‘s)asse jejided uj paysaAu|
SOIJIAI}OR [RJUDLUUIDAOL)

sie9 A |eosid 931l ] 1seT]
jusuodwo) Ag s}assy 19N

VNITO¥VD HLNOS ‘VIGWNT109 40 ALID

102



Expenses

Governmental activities:
General government
Judicial
Finance department
Community development
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Public services
General services
Community promotions
Interest on bonds
Non departmental

Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activities:
Water/sewer facilities
Hydro-electric plant
Storm water operating
Parking facilities
Transportation operating
Redevelopment programs
Total business-type expenses
Total primary government expenses

Program revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and confributions
Total governmental program revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type program revenues:

Total primary government revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government net revenue

General Revenues
Governmental activities:
Taxes
Lost revenue
Alcoholic beverages taxes
Motor fuel taxes
Miscellaneous state taxes
Fines and forfeitures
Unrestricted investment earnings
Amortization of premium

Gain/Loss from disposal of capital assets

Transfers

Total general government revenues/transfers

Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings

Gain/Loss from disposal of capital assets

Transfers
Total business-type activities:

Total primary government general revenues

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Changes in Net Assets
Last Three Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)
2007 2006 2005
$ 35,358,581 § 51,296,220 6,912,887
2,167,922 2,044,037 1,967,326
1,882,964 1,360,869 1,194,909
3,904,174 3,396,497 3,082,389
50,306,710 41,619,178 38,027,339
11,053,830 7,853,425 13,169,502
24,014,241 22,868,279 25,910,346
3,382,092 5,791,988 2,630,296
9,926,673 7,946,764 781,376
4,081,910 2,275,464 3,131,666
3,433,419 1,147,254 3,956,108
149,612,515 147,599,975 100,764,142
83,849,936 80,189,801 67,586,282
1,020,132 1,010,483 903,114
3,382,264 1,683,476 1,518,394
5,139,583 6,149,446 2,745,011
30,320 31,363 121,363
774,935 901,209 238,547
94,197,170 89,965,778 73,112,711
$ 243,809,685 $ 237,565,753 173,876,853
$ 56,583,922 §$ 51,943,738 62,989,276
30,413,604 30,208,259 25,839,940
8,291,673 2,165,766 0
95,289,199 84,317,763 88,829,218
109,493,479 103,272,992 96,099,207
0 0 0
12,161,089 13,738,679 0
121,654,568 117,011,671 96,099,207
216,943,767 § 201,329,434 184,928,423
(54,323,315) § (63,282,213) (11,934,926)
27,457,398 27,045,893 22,986,496
(26,865,918) §$ (36,236,320) 11,051,570
32,028,856 § 27,134,829 36,597,464
14,988,418 14,241,132 0
3,435,403 3,204,139 3,131,607
7,715 9,241 14,239
0 10,383 9,953
0 0 903,730
4,670,483 2,478,194 2,625,477
0 0 91,788
(7,426,558) (2,950,480) 138,844
8,736,903 5,832,436 243,168
56,441,220 $ 49,959,874 43,756,270
6,715,293 5,536,084 3,368,514
(116,006) 22,080 58,153
(8,736,903) (5,832,436) (243,168)
(2,137,616) (274,272) 3,183,499
54,303,604 $ 49,685,602 46,939,769
2,117,905 § (13,322,339) 31,821,344
25,319,782 26,771,621 26,169,995
27,437,687 § 13,449,282 57,991,339
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General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Reserve for held in trust
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds
Total all other governmental funds

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Three Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
2007 2006 2005

2,037,950 $ 1,126,443 1,647,466
21,687,149 22,394,019 15,196,044
23,725,099 $ 23,520,462 16,843,510
17,972,849 § 22,428,329 18,762,820
1,983 1,982 723
5,287 5,000 5,000
12,579,898 9,751,796 8,152,704
4,885,298 4,086,495 0
10,968,390 14,032,774 12,599,006
46,413,705 § 50,306,376 39,520,253
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Revenues

General property taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmenta! revenue
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Federal government

State government

County government

Promotions

Confiscated drugs

Interest

Other revenues
Revenue from component units
Cost recovery fees

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

General government

Judicial

Finance department
-Community development
Public safety

Parks and recreation
Public services

General services
Community promotions
Non departmental

Paid to component units
Other charges

Debt service

Principle retirement
interest on bonds
Fiscal agent charges

Capital outlay

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (definciency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers (out)
Proceeds from disposal of captial assets
Proceeds from note payable issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenses

CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmenta! Funds
Last Three Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)

2007 2006 2005
46,684,713 $ 41,546,505 $ 36,529,356
31,162,106 27,911,017 26,666,050

9,879,961 8,884,739 8,728,588
8,412,727 7,708,719 6,059,904
786,187 788,374 903,730
6,296,982 7,364,346 5,053,074
1,630,152 2,501,419 3,378,397
27,546,699 20,548,995 16,772,187
188,563 60,177 264,974
44,057 143,818 40,488
3,512,130 1,869,260 1,114,238
4,991,201 6,999,423 19,698,285

0 0 82,107

3,200,000 3,200,000 3,208,450
144,335,478 129,526,793 128,499,828
30,136,559 46,732,884 45,790,642
1,874,399 1,833,635 1,888,128
1,747,050 1,252,432 1,192,351
3,249,126 3,093,611 3,161,595

42,204,031 37,555,878 37,548,549
8,959,135 6,857,319 13,063,008

20,907,423 21,433,541 25,087,460
3,221,626 5,181,242 2,366,418
8,028,392 7,946,764 781,376
1,994,232 656,597 1,823,582

0 0 847,697

1,567,941 483,367 0
7,559,169 8,168,439 4,914,429
3,804,084 1,626,467 1,847,366
87,360 5,208 3,684
25,409,592 6,027,774 508,109
160,750,119 148,855,158 140,824,395

(16,414,641) (19,328,365) (12,324,567)

23,252,127 25,167,313 17,298,701

(31,432,694) (19,334,877) (16,306,393)
2,526,053 6,485,100 0

22,014,258 1,500,000 0

16,359,744 13,817,536 992,308

(54,897) (5,510,829) (11,332,259)

8%

7%

5%
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CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Miscellaneous Statistics

(UNAUDITED)

Year Ended June 30, 2607

Date of Incorporation
Town
City

Form of Government
Area - Square Miles
Miles of Streets and Sidewalks
Streets
Sidewalks
Miles of Sanitary Sewers
Building Permits

Permits issued
Estimated Cost - taxable property

Estimated Cost - nontaxable property

Fire Protection
Number of stations
Number of employees

Police Protection
Number of Stations
Authorized strength:

Full-time sworn
Part-time civilians
Full-time civilians

Recreation
Parks and playgrounds - acres
City owned parks and playgrounds

Municipal Water Plants

Number of Meters Billed
Water
Sewer

Daily Average
consumption billed
Plant Capacity
Miles of water mains
Number of fire hydrants (in-City)

Inside
City Limits

39,003
32,106

106

December 21, 1805
December 21, 1854

Council-Manager
135.66

471.29

301.09
1019.80

5,697

386,450,009
7,794,413

11
267
24
340
42

557.8
51

Outside
City Limits Total

91,762
34,983

130,765
67,088

55,199,489
126,000,000
1,887.10
3,063



CITY OF COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
Miscellaneous Statistics
(UNAUDITED)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Election Data

Registered voters in the City (District 1C) 62,990
Number of votes cast last election 13,122
Percentage of registered voters voting 21.51%

Traffic Signals and Street Lights

Controlled traffic signal intersections 261
Four-way flashing sgnals at intersections 16
School flashing signals 45
Number of street lights 9,067

Education (Public School System Only)
City school system(Richland County School District 1)

Number of school buildings 51
Number of teachers 2,460
Number of students registerd 23,658
Average daily attendance:
Elementary schools 10,552
Middle schools 5,367
High schools 6,737
Special schools 121

Universities and Colleges

Number of locations 8

Number of students registered 33,198
City of Columbia Permanent Employees

Full-time 2,188

Part-time 64
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